
TOWN OF FLORENCE 
REGULAR MEETING  

AGENDA 
 

PURSUANT TO A.R.S. § 38-431.02, NOTICE IS HEREBY GI VEN TO THE MEMBERS 
OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL AND TO THE GENERAL PUB LIC THAT THE 
FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL WILL HOLD A MEETING OPEN TO T HE PUBLIC ON 
MONDAY, AUGUST 19, 2013, AT 5:30 P.M., IN THE CHAMB ERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA . 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL: Mayor Rankin___; Vice-Mayor Smith___;    

Councilmembers:  Tom Celaya___; Bill Hawkins___;  
Ruben Montaño___; Tara Walter___; Vallarie Woolridg e___;  

 
3. ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

For discussion of the public body with the Town Att orney regarding pending 
and contemplated litigation pursuant to A.R.S. § 38 -431.03(A)(4), and for 
consultation with the Town Attorney regarding the a cquisition of real property 
pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(7). 
 

4. ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
5. INVOCATION  

 
6. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
7. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

Call to the Public for public comment on issues wit hin the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment t o three minutes.  
Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those 
commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised  or may ask that a matter 
be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the  Council shall not 
discuss or take action on any matter during an open  call to the public unless 
the matters are properly noticed for discussion and  legal action. 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND PRESENTATIONS 
a. Public Hearing on an application for Zone Change  requested by the Town 

of Florence on behalf of Territory Square property owners to change the 
existing zoning on the subject properties from Rura l Agricultural (RA-10), 
Single Residential Ranchette (R1-R), Public/Institu tional (P/I), and Planned 
Unit Development located along the south side of th e Gila River between 
the Plant Road alignment and Highway 79.  First Rea ding of Ordinance No. 
602-13: AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL  COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING THE TERRITORY SQUARE ZONE CHANGE  (PZC-
01-13-ZC).  
 

b. Presentation by Greater Florence Chamber of Comm erce recognizing the 
Business of the Month. 

mariah
Highlight



 
c. Presentation of a Years of Service Award to Doro thy Cardenas for 15 years 

of dedicated service to the Town of Florence.  
   
9. CONSENT: All items indicated by an (*) will be h andled by a single vote as part 

of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public 
objects at the time the agenda item is called. 
 
a. *Adoption of Resolution No. 1410-13:  A RESOLUTI ON OF THE TOWN OF 

FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING THE FINA L PLAT OF 
SILVER KING MARKETPLACE (PZC-31-13-FP).  

 
b. *Adoption of Resolution No. 1412-13:  A RESOLUTI ON OF THE TOWN OF 

FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, SUPPORTING THE CAS A GRANDE 
RUINS NATIONAL MONUMENT BOUNDARY EXPANSION. 
 

c. *Authorization to enter into an Intergovernmenta l Agreement with the Pinal 
County Sheriff’s Office to accept a Pinal County Be lgian Malinois K9, Russ 
#2085, Pinal County Animal Control #61196 (K9), cur rently a member of 
Pinal County Sheriff’s Office, to assist the Floren ce Police Department in 
performing their law enforcement functions. 

 
d. *Approval of the resignation of Barbara J. Kelly  from the Redevelopment 

Commission. 
 

e. *Approval of the June 27, 2013 and July 1, 2013 Town Council minutes. 
 

f. *Receive and file the following board and commis sion minutes: 
i. Receive and file the February 27, 2013 Historic District Advisory 

Commission minutes. 
ii. Receive and file the April 25, 2013 Parks and R ecreation Advisory 

Board minutes.    
iii. Receive and file the March 7, 2013 and April 4 , 2013 Planning and 

Zoning Commission minutes. 
 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a. Ordinance No. 599-13: Discussion/Approval/Disapp roval of AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, AR IZONA, 
APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE MERRILL RANCH PLANNED  UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT (PZC-35-12-PUD) (First Reading August 5 , 2013).  

 
11. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of Resolution No . 1411-13:  A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, A RIZONA, 
GRANTING APPROVAL TO THE ISSUANCE OF ONE OR MORE SE RIES OF 
THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE TOWN OF  
FLORENCE, INC. TAX-EXEMPT AND/OR TAXABLE EDUCATION REVENUE 
BONDS (TELESIS PREPARATORY ACADEMY PROJECT), SERIES  2013, IN 
AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $6,0 00,000 TO 
FINANCE THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, RENOVATION, 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



IMPROVEMENT AND EQUIPPING OF EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES  FOR 
TELESIS CENTER FOR LEARNING, INC. 

 
b. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the submissio n of a grant application 

by the Town of Florence for Federal Emergency Manag ement Agency 
(FEMA) Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Res ponse (SAFER) grant 
program funds. 
 

12. MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
13. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

 
14. CALL TO THE COUNCIL 

 
15. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time d uring the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s A ttorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
POSTED THE 16th DAY AUGUST 2013, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 77 5 
NORTH MAIN STREET, 1000 SOUTH WILLOW STREET, FLOREN CE, ARIZONA 
AND AT WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISAB ILITIES ACT (ADA), 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE B ASIS OF 
DISABILITY REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A 
DISABILITY MAY REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY  
CONTACTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT  (520) 868-
7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE  AS EARLY AS 
POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATION .***  

mariah
Highlight



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION 

FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
8a.  

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT: Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                     Community Development Director   
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 602-13: Territory Square  
                   Zone Change (PZC-1-13-ZC) 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

 Subject:  Territory Square PZC-01-13-ZC                               Meeting Date:  August 19, 2013 
Page 1 of 9 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Public Hearing and First Reading only on August 19, 2013.  
 
On September 3, 2013, motion to adopt Ordinance No. 602-13 for the Territory 
Square Zone Change. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town of Florence, on behalf of the Territory Square property owners, 
requests approval of the following application: 
 

A Zone Change request to change the existing zoning on the 
subject properties from Rural Agricultural (RA-10), Single 
Residential Ranchette (R1-R), Public/Institutional (P/I) and Planned 
Unit Development (PUD) to Territory Square (TS). The Territory 
Square project area is generally located along the south side of the 
Gila River between the Plant Road alignment and Highway 79. 

 
Staff will expand upon the parameters of this Zone Change discussion to provide 
more context and historical perspective for this request. Staff contends that one 
will see that this project serves as a model of how a bold vision can be 
incrementally implemented and become reality with appropriate dedication, 
commitment, community support and funding. 
 
North End Framework Vision Plan 
 
Work on the North End Framework Vision Plan (“Vision Plan”), a multi-faceted 
project that crafted a variety of economic development, planning and engineering 
enhancement strategies for an area along the Gila River in the core area of the 
Town of Florence, began in May 2010. The Vision Plan obtained the unanimous 



 Subject:  Territory Square PZC-01-13-ZC                               Meeting Date:  August 19, 2013 
Page 2 of 9 

endorsement of the Town’s Planning and Zoning Commission and the Mayor and 
Council of the Town of Florence. The Vision Plan has also been well-received by 
the community and won the 2011 Best Project of the Year Award from the 
Arizona Chapter of the American Planning Association. The study area 
subsequently was renamed Territory Square, a name with historical relevance 
that was supported by all of the property owners within the study area. 
 
Prior to this initiative, community leaders had been evaluating the development 
feasibility for this property for a number of years. In 2006, the Town conducted a 
Facility Needs Study for the portion of the site often referred to as the Giles 
property, land that was acquired by the Town many years earlier (acquisition of 
purchased and donated parcels began in 2001). After acquiring the Giles 
property, the Town considered various potential uses for the site, but several 
factors prevented the property from being developed (almost the entire area is 
within the floodplain), though it has been consistently leased and used for 
farming purposes. The Town Facility Needs Study showed how the Giles 
property could potentially be developed with a new governmental complex and 
that idea led to discussions with Pinal County and other governmental agencies 
about the possibility of joint development opportunities. Seeing the long-term 
strategic importance of the subject area, efforts were made to broaden 
expectations and partnerships and an RFP process was commenced that 
ultimately resulted in the selection of the consultant team, a detailed scope of 
services, an extensive public participation plan and ultimately the development of 
the Vision Plan.  

 
The Town of Florence is the primary stakeholder in this project. Two of the larger 
private portions of the subject area are: the Heritage Square planned 
development on property owned by the Londen Companies; and the Florence 
Farms development, which has been led by Harold and Katie Christ. While 
development has yet to commence on the Heritage Square property, the 
Florence Farms (a.k.a., Windmill Winery) property has seen much activity in 
recent years and has developed from a historic working farm to a successful 
plant nursery, winery and unique special event destination. Locally based 
families have enjoyed farming on their smaller properties within the study area, 
but also realize the long-term economic development potential of their properties 
and therefore appreciated the value of participating in the Vision Plan effort.  
 
While the Vision Plan considered some phenomenally complex issues, Swaback 
Partners, the lead consultant that worked with the Town of Florence on this 
project, was able to create a document that is reader-friendly, easy to understand 
and motivational. Sub-consultants on the project included Wood, Patel & 
Associates, Inc. for engineering expertise and Eric Rasmussen and Pooled 
Resources for economic development, financing strategy and demographic 
expertise. From project commencement, it was critical that this project produced 
a vision and goals that were not only excelling in planning and design 



 Subject:  Territory Square PZC-01-13-ZC                               Meeting Date:  August 19, 2013 
Page 3 of 9 

expectations, but was economically viable, practical and implementable from an 
engineering and development perspective. 
 
The very nature of the project required nothing but the most original and 
innovative efforts and the final Vision Plan reflects such. The Vision Plan had to 
merge a variety of technical considerations to develop a workable vision and 
realistic implementation strategies. The Vision Plan also considers the very 
diverse interests of the stakeholders directly and indirectly involved with this 
project, with special consideration to the ultimate development of the long-term 
private-public partnerships critical to the success of the Vision Plan.  
 
One critical benefit of the Vision Plan effort was that it allowed the Town and 
stakeholders an opportunity to finally place all of the puzzle pieces of past and 
on-going studies together so that flood plain mitigation, transportation, urban 
design, economic development, infrastructure, the future governmental complex, 
financing and a variety of other issues could finally be organized in a dynamic 
and comprehensive fashion. 
 
To elaborate on one of the aforementioned study areas, economic development 
can prove quite challenging with inadequate transportation facilities and thus the 
timing of the Vision Plan was well-coordinated with critical transportation issues 
that have been and continue to be under consideration in Florence. The potential 
location of the North-South ADOT Corridor (planned to link Interstate 10 with US 
60) was closely evaluated during the study process and ultimately the Town, 
working with a large contingent of stakeholders, was able to endorse a future 
corridor alignment that would benefit the subject study area and the long-term 
sustainability of the core of Florence. The Vision Plan also developed a 
recommendation for a future Main Street Gila River bridge crossing to better 
connect the core of Florence with new growth areas north of the Gila River. 
Additionally, the study process looked at ways of enhancing local access 
throughout the downtown area.  
 
To promote additional outreach for the community on this project, the Town 
conducted a four-part series of Community Forums wherein the opportunity was 
readily available for citizenry input. Forums were held at Florence Town Hall, the 
Windmill Winery and the Anthem Parkside Community Center. All forums were 
educational, informative, interactive and well attended.  Throughout the project, 
the team also maintained a Facebook page and a specific webpage for the 
project. Press releases and several newspaper articles provided more 
information about the status of this project to the community.  
 
The fundamental first step of this project was to formulate a scope of work that 
would be most conducive to the anticipated outcome. Unlike many planning 
exercises that are one–dimensional, this effort included significant expertise from 
a broad range of practitioners.  It was important to organize the process, scope 
and deliverables in an incremental manner that would be informative for each 



 Subject:  Territory Square PZC-01-13-ZC                               Meeting Date:  August 19, 2013 
Page 4 of 9 

task along the way. It was critical from the project’s commencement to develop a 
team of stakeholders and technical experts to help Town staff and the consultant 
team to keep the project on track. The project had active stakeholder and 
technical committee meetings that helped to supplement regular project 
management meetings, community forums and other avenues of discussion on 
this project. 
 
The Vision Plan articulates a creative alternative to a previously considered 
levee/dike scenario that calls for the careful relocation of earth material from 
locations closest to the riverbed to immediately adjacent land areas directly 
south. This process of “cut and fill” allows a significant area to have a raised 
elevation that would be above the floodplain. Therefore creating new “buildable” 
lands within the study area.  A major riverfront park is planned for those areas 
that will remain in the floodplain.  A land use budget for land area was created to 
allocate various types of uses that could be critically linked with new 
transportation and open space systems. Understanding future land uses and 
densities helped to model the types of infrastructure needed to support the 
envisioned development. That in turn, helped the project team to better 
understand the costs associated with development, what types of improvements 
might be financed and how the future development might be phased.  
 
Concurrent with this process were discussions on the character of open space 
and development envisioned for the study area. Clearly, the Town needed to 
provide for the critical physical and symbolic linkage between historic Florence 
and the new growth areas of Florence. Furthermore, public feedback supported 
the notion that the study area needed to have its own identity that merged the 
multiple identities of Florence, but did not attempt to replicate historic or 
suburban Florence development character traits. 
 
All of the aforementioned information was then complied in the Vision Plan, along 
with several notebooks of accompanying technical reports. Perhaps the most 
critical portion of the Vision Plan is the implementation section that provides 
guidance to the Town as to the types of steps that could be taken to incentivize 
development.  
 
Since the adoption of the Vision Plan, the Town has diligently worked to move 
this vision forward, while keeping all the project stakeholders well-informed on 
subsequent steps. The Town initiated a 2012 Major General Plan Amendment 
that redefined the MPC (Master Planned Community) land use designation to 
better fit this project and applied this new designation to the subject study area. 
The Town also continued their partnership with Swaback Partners in the 
development of a new, highly innovative and flexible hybrid zoning district that 
will work in concert with the MPC designation to support the implementation of 
the Vision Plan development strategies. The application (Zone Change) of this 
new Territory Square (TS) Zoning District is the focus of this application.   
 



 Subject:  Territory Square PZC-01-13-ZC                               Meeting Date:  August 19, 2013 
Page 5 of 9 

The Town is also working to extend a significant sewer main line in this area that 
will facilitate future development. The Town is also working with the Vision Plan 
engineering firm to complete a FEMA CLOMR (Conditional Letter of Map 
Revision) for the entire Vision Plan site and the FEMA LOMR (Letter of Map 
Revision) on the Town’s first 40 acre development site within the study area. 
Furthermore, ongoing discussions with stakeholders are occurring to evaluate 
future development financing strategies and implementation of other economic 
development tools that the Town may use to facilitate the development of this 
site, including the use of the Infill Incentive District mechanism that was adopted 
as a possible tool for this site during the Vision Plan process.  
 
Stakeholders, planners, investors, brokers, developers and builders are 
increasingly seeing the potential of this site because of the location, innovation, 
comprehensiveness, character, partnerships and availability of development 
incentives. The Vision Plan is paving the way for the ongoing prosperity of 
Florence and particularly the long-term sustainability and vitality of the heart and 
core of Florence.  
 
CLOMR/LOMR 
 
As mentioned above, in 2012, Wood, Patel & Associates, Inc. was awarded the 
engineering contract to accomplish two primary floodplain mitigation objectives 
for the study area. First of all, to complete a FEMA CLOMR for the entire 
Territory Square site to obtain the support of FEMA and other regulatory 
agencies for the future site work and development that will occur on the site.  

Secondly, to take the additional effort to remove a portion of Town property from 
the floodplain by completing the work identified and approved through the 
CLOMR process and obtaining a LOMR from FEMA for the subject portion of the 
Territory Square site.  The result of this effort is to obtain approximately 40 acres 
of buildable land to the west of Florence Town Hall and north of Heritage Park 
that can be used to construct new Town facilities, such as a library, community 
center and perhaps even an aquatics center.  

The aforementioned facilities are programmed in the CIP and, of course, it is well 
known that more modern, larger and efficient community facilities are needed to 
meet current and projected population demands. Such facilities would be among 
the first to become a part of a larger Town complex that could also eventually 
include a new Town Hall and additional administrative offices. There is also the 
possibility of having some additional land within this first phase to develop for 
non-governmental complementary uses. This is consistent with the NEFVP and 
the Territory Square Zoning District. 

Staff notes that the Town has programmed funds to bring fill to the subject 40 
acre Town parcel so that an elevated pad can be created and certified in order to 
complete the LOMR. There will be additional costs to fully develop Town 
properties within the subject area. Staff further notes that the costs related to 



 Subject:  Territory Square PZC-01-13-ZC                               Meeting Date:  August 19, 2013 
Page 6 of 9 

bringing properties not owned by the Town to the LOMR stage will be covered by 
those private property owners. As land values within the Territory Square area 
increase and the economy rebounds, a financing mechanism, such as a CFD, 
might be used to assist with infrastructure development within the Territory 
Square site. 
 
Territory Square Zoning District 
 
The Territory Square Zoning District was developed as the primary zoning tool to 
implement the North End Framework Vision Plan. The Territory Square Zoning 
District provides a clear and concise methodology as to future development 
expectations and requirements.  The zoning and associated components help 
ensure that the intended vision meets the high expectations of the Town, 
property owners, and community members for the subject study area.  Territory 
Square is an innovative mixed-use hybrid zoning district because it combined 
features of traditional zoning with Form Based Code and SmartCode 
components. This approach is much different from the typical, more black and 
white, regulatory approach to zoning, which generally works well in most cases, 
but not with a highly innovative project such as Territory Square.  

The Territory Square Zoning District document was organized as follows: 

• The Transect and Regulatory Plan - General visual description of the 
anticipated built environment for this area as described from most urban 
to most rural. 

• Land Use Groups (LUG’s) Summary – Narrative descriptions of the 
zones associated with each section of the Transect.  These sections 
represent Land Use Groups and associated characteristics of the built 
environment. 

• Land Use Budget – Chart identifying the maximum number of housing 
units as well as non-residential maximum building square footage 
allowed within each Land Use Group. 

• Function and Use – Identifies the spectrum of uses allowed in each Land 
Use Group. 

• Land Use Group Summary – Narrative and pictorial description of the 
associated physical form within each LUG and typical lot characteristic 
development criteria. 

• Frontage Types – Articulation of private and public frontage conditions 
for the range of LUG’s. 

• Build to Line – Description of areas within the Zoning District that will 
require build to line development. 

• Open Space – Narrative and visual description of the range of civic open 
space opportunities within the LUG’s. 

• Design Guidelines – Design Guidelines within the Zoning District that 
articulates the anticipated quality and character of design. 

• Use Glossary – Definition of terms. 



 Subject:  Territory Square PZC-01-13-ZC                               Meeting Date:  August 19, 2013 
Page 7 of 9 

The Territory Zoning District obtained the unanimous endorsement of the Town’s 
Planning and Zoning Commission and the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence in 2012. The adoption of the new zoning category did not apply it to any 
properties as such had to be accomplished under a separate application and 
after the MPC General Plan designation was applied to the subject area (zoning 
requires consistency with the General Plan in Arizona). 
    
Staff has worked diligently to obtain the owner’s authorization and “207” forms 
from property owners within the Territory Square area, thus fully indicating their 
willingness to have the zoning on their properties changed to TS. Consistent with 
endorsement of the NEFVP, the Town supports the application of the TS zoning 
on all of the properties within the study area. Unfortunately, one property owner 
with a small parcel within the study area has chosen to not apply the TS zoning 
to her property at this time, but staff expects cooperation with this upon further 
discussion. This does not negatively impact the implementation plans for this 
project. 
 
Next Steps 
 
Staff contends that the Town should remain steadfast in implementing the Vision 
Plan, as it has done thus far with the actions described in this report and with this 
application. The Town has a very unique opportunity with this project to act 
essentially as the Master Developer on a project of overwhelming significance to 
Florence. As discussed during the NEVFP process, this site helps bridge (literally 
and otherwise) development on both sides of the Gila River and provides the 
greatest opportunity for new, large scale, cohesive (marketable), residential and 
commercial growth in the core of Town, which will help to keep the Town’s core 
vibrant and sustainable. 
 
Beyond the steps identified within, here are some of the additional steps that can 
be anticipated in the future as the market recovers, land values improve and 
financing options are increased: 
 

1. Enter into Development Agreements with property owners as a means of 
effectively agreeing upon terms for incentives, financing strategies, 
infrastructure planning and possible land trades. 

2. Continue to market the project as a whole (in our new Economic 
Development brochure and on our new Economic Development webpage) 
and help private property owners market their sites for new residential and 
commercial development.   

3. Look for opportunities for private—public partnerships on Town’s 40 acre 
site. Ideas could include partnerships on the recreational components 
planned for the 40 areas. For example, the City of Maricopa and YMCA just 
entered into an agreement to run the City’s multi-generational and aquatics 
facility. 



 Subject:  Territory Square PZC-01-13-ZC                               Meeting Date:  August 19, 2013 
Page 8 of 9 

4. Look for ways to fund and program key transportation improvements within 
the project area, such as the east-west roadway that will traverse the site 
from Plant Road to Highway 79. 

5. Continue to be extremely diligent in efforts related to the ADOT North-South 
Corridor and Passenger Rail studies to facilitate the proper alignment of 
these facilities in proximity to this site and downtown Florence. 

6. Work with CCA on the new sewer line planned across this site. Look for 
ways to facilitate other water and sewer improvements that will benefit this 
site. 

7. As the market demands, work to take additional Town properties to the 
LOMR stage. 

8. Develop a plan, phasing strategy and funding sources to begin linear park 
improvements along the south side of the Gila River between Plant Road 
and Highway 79. Include these plans in an updated Parks, Trails and Open 
Space Master Plan due to be updated soon because of new annexations 
and changes related to Development Impact Fee statutes related to park 
improvements. 
 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
A notice for the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing was mailed to 
all property owners within three hundred (300) feet of the site.  Property posting 
for notice of public hearings was posted on site and advertisements in the local 
Town paper for the per Town requirements.  Under Arizona Revised Statutes, 
Title 9, Section-462.04 and Town of Florence Development Code, a public 
hearing is required for a Zone Change. 
 
Staff notes that a few property owners along 1st Street adjacent to the Territory 
Square project area have inquired about this Zone Change. One of these 
property owners had questions about the transition of adjacent land uses and the 
impact of this Zone Change on property values and shared these comments at 
the Planning and Zoning meeting on July 18, 2013. Staff contends that this Zone 
Change should increase property values for the subject site and ultimately 
surrounding properties as development progresses. Furthermore, The Territory 
Square Zoning District has development provisions related to setbacks, buffers, 
scale, site design, architecture and transitioning of land uses that exceed those 
found in conventional zoning districts. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Staff contends this Zone Change, combined with other North End Framework 
Plan implementation steps, will have a positive financial impact on the Town. 
 
 
 
 



 Subject:  Territory Square PZC-01-13-ZC                               Meeting Date:  August 19, 2013 
Page 9 of 9 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission found that the proposed Territory Square 
Zone Change request to change the existing zoning on the subject properties 
from Rural Agricultural (RA-10), Single Residential Ranchette (R1-R), 
Public/Institutional (P/I) and Planned Unit Development (PUD) to Territory 
Square (TS) is in compliance with the Town’s General Plan and is in the interest 
of general welfare, health and safety of the public. The Planning and Zoning 
Commission has forwarded a favorable recommendation on the Territory Square 
Zone Change to the Mayor and Town Council, subject to the following conditions:  

 
1. Property Owners agree to waive claims for diminution in value pursuant to 

Proposition 207 [A.R.S. 12-1134] pursuant to the waivers attached hereto 
as Exhibit B. 

 
2. Any additional conditions deemed necessary by the Town Council. 

 
Public Hearing and First Reading only on August 19, 2013.  
 
On September 3, 2013, motion to adopt Ordinance No. 602-13 for the Territory 
Square Zone Change. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Ordinance No. 602-13 
Exhibit A Legal Description 
Exhibit B 207 Waivers 
Application 
Affidavit of Publication  
 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 602-13     
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING THE TERRITORY SQUARE ZONE CHANGE 
(PZC-01-13-ZC).  

 
WHEREAS, a request to change the existing zoning on the subject properties 

from Rural Agricultural (RA-10), Single Residential Ranchette (R1-R), 
Public/Institutional (P/I) and Planned Unit Development (PUD) to Territory Square (TS) 
Zoning District has been proposed and a public hearing has been held by the Planning 
and Zoning Commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has found the Territory 

Square Zone Change is in conformance with the Town’s North End Framework Vision 
Plan and the Town’s General Plan; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has forwarded the Mayor and 

Council of the Town of Florence a favorable recommendation for the Territory Square 
Zone Change, subject to certain conditions; and 

 
WHEREAS, said proposal has been considered by the Mayor and Council of the 

Town of Florence and the Territory Square Zone Change has been found to be 
appropriate and further found to promote the health, safety and welfare of the residents 
of the Town and its orderly growth. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town 
of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 
The Zoning Map of Florence, Arizona, is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
classification of the parcels of land depicted on EXHIBIT A attached hereto, from Rural 
Agricultural (RA-10), Single Residential Ranchette (R1-R), Public/Institutional (P/I) and 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) to Territory Square (TS), subject to the following 
condition: 
  

1. Property Owners agree to waive claims for diminution in value pursuant to 
Proposition 207 [A.R.S. § 12-1134] pursuant to the waivers attached hereto as 
Exhibit B. 

  
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence this 

___ day of _______ 2013.  

______________________________ 
 Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

ATTEST:                                             APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________  ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 



















 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
9a. 

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT: Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mark  Eckhoff, AICP 
                                     Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1410-13: Silver King Marketplace  
                    Final Plat (PZC-31-13-FP). 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Silver King Marketplace Final Plat                                          Meeting Date:   August 19, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1410-13 for the Final Plat of Silver King Marketplace. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
This Final Plat combines the Silver King Marketplace lot with the Padilla property that 
was recently purchased by the Town. This re-subdivision combines these two lots and 
also abandons the Granite Street right-of-way in between these lots. 
   
Staff is collaborating with consultants on creating an inviting open space area for this 
new lot that provides shade, grass areas, seating areas and an environment that is 
comfortable for outdoor gatherings and small events. The outdoor space will provide an 
extension of the indoor space at the Silver King Marketplace, which should promote the 
Silver King’s potential to include more restaurants.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The cost of the park development, which has been budgeted, will benefit the Town as a 
whole and should help the Town to attract new businesses downtown and to the Silver 
King Marketplace. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1410-13 for the Final Plat of the Silver King 
Marketplace. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1410-13 
Final Plat 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1410-13 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY 
ARIZONA, APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT OF SILVER KING 
MARKETPLACE (PZC-31-13-FP).   
 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 
 Approve the Final Plat of Silver King Marketplace, subject to compliance with all 
applicable laws and ordinances.  
 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 19th day of August 2013. 
 
 

 
  ______________________________ 
  Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    James E. Mannato, Town Attorney  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
9b. 

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town  
                                      Manager/Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1412-13: Supporting the Casa 
Grande Ruins National Monument Boundary Expansion 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Resolution No. 1412-13 Casa Grande Ruins Expansion       Meeting Date: August 19, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1412-13:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, SUPPORTING THE CASA GRANDE RUINS 
NATIONAL MONUMENT BOUNDARY EXPANSION. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
There has been a bipartisan bill introduced in the House of Representatives to enlarge 
the boundaries of Casa Grande Ruins National Monument.  This proposal has been 
around for a while – it will protect important archaeological sites and also entice park 
visitors to stay longer in Pinal County, as there will be more to see. 
 
A resolution from Florence supporting this bill, much like the attached resolution from 
Coolidge, and a resolution passed this week by the Pinal County Board of Supervisors 
would be very helpful in our efforts to convince Congress to pass this legislation. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There will be no fiscal impact. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Adopt Resolution No. 1412-13 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1412-13 
City of Coolidge Ordinance No. 13-14 
Draft Bill 



RESOLUTION NO. 1412-13 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, SUPPORTING THE CASA GRANDE RUINS NATIONAL 
MONUMENT BOUNDARY EXPANSION. 

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence recognizes that many of the modern tribes of 
southern Arizona, who are the descendants of the Ancient Sonoran Desert People, 
have inhabited southern Arizona since time immemorial; and  

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence recognizes the need to protect, preserve, and 
manage cultural resources on its traditional-use lands; and  

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence recognizes that the Casa Grande Ruins 
Reservation was set aside on March 2, 1892, proclaimed as the United States’ first 
archeological preserve on June 22, 1892, and was redesignated as the Casa Grande 
Ruins National Monument on August 13, 1918; and  

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence recognizes that the Casa Grande Ruins 
National Monument protects and preserves one of the finest architectural examples of 
the 13th Century Hohokam culture in the Southwest; that the Casa Grande Ruins 
National Monument represents only part of what was a settlement that may have 
covered 2 square miles; and that recent surveys and research have determined that 
Casa Grande Ruins National Monument archeological site extends outside the existing 
boundary; and  

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence recognizes that development is encroaching 
on the Casa Grande Ruins National Monument and adjacent lands; and  

WHEREAS, the National Park Service has studied the possibility of expanding 
the Casa Grande Ruins National Monument to include other sensitive archeological 
sites associated with the Casa Grande Community, and to preserve the historical 
integrity including the view shed and vistas of the Casa Grande Ruins National 
Monument; and  

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence recognizes that much of the large Hohokam 
village area surrounding the existing  Casa Grande Ruins National Monument is not 
protected; and furthermore, that opportunities to protect the few remaining areas in 
Arizona where Hohokam material culture is present are greatly threatened by rapid 
growth and development in the Maricopa, Pinal, and Pima County areas; and 



WHEREAS, the Town of Florence supports the proposed annexation of the Casa 
Grande Ruins National Monument as identified in the proposed legislation, which is 
attached hereto.  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and Council of the Town 
of Florence, Arizona, do hereby support the Casa Grande Ruins National Monument 
expansion, and recommend that Congresswoman Ann Kirkpatrick sponsor legislation to 
accomplish such a boundary expansion to preserve and protect culturally significant and 
sensitive sites adjacent to and nearby the existing Casa Grande Ruins National 
Monument.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, on this 19th day of August, 2013.  

 

      _____________________________________ 
      Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 

ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_____________________________ _____________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 

 



RESOLUTION No 1314

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE

CITY OF COOLIDGE ARIZONA SUPPORTING THE CASA

GRANDE RUINS NATIONAL MONUMENT BOiJNDARY

EXPANSION

WHEREAS The City of Coolidge recognizes that many of the modern tribes of southern

Arizona who are the descendants of the Ancient Sonoran Desert People have inhabited Southem Arizona

since time immemorial and

WHEREAS The City of Coolidge recognizes the need to protect preserve and manage cultural

resources on its traditionaluse lands and

WHEREAS The City of Coolidge recognizes that the Casa Grande Ruins Reservation was set

aside on March 2 1892 proclaimed as the United States first archaeological preserve on June 22 1892

and was redesignated as the Casa Grande Ruins National Monument on August 13 1918 and

WHEREAS The City of Coolidge recognizes that the Casa Grande Ruins National Monument

protects and preserves one of the finest architectural examples of the 13 Century Hohokam culture in the

Southwest that the Casa Grande Nationa Monument represents only part of what was a settlement that

may have covered 2 square miles and that recent surveys and research have detertnined the Casa Grande

National Monument archaeological site extends outside the existing boundary and

WHEREAS The City of Coolidge recognizes that development is encroaching on the Casa

Grande Ruins National Monument and adjacent lands and

WHEREAS The National Pazk Service has studied the possibility of expanding the Casa Grande

National Monument to include other sensitive archeological sites associated with the Casa Grande

Community and to preserve the historic integrity including the view shed and vistas of the Casa Grande

NaYional Monument and

WHEREAS The City of Coolidge recognizes that much of the large Hohokam village area

surrounding the existing Casa Grande National Monument is not protected and furthermore that

opportunities to protect the few remaining areas in Ariwna where Hohokam material culture is present

are greatly threatened by rapid growth and development in the Maricopa Pinal and Pima County area

and

WHEREAS The CiTy of Coolidge supports the proposed expansion of the Casa Grande Ruins

National Monument as identified in the proposed legislation which is attached hereto and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council of the City of

Coolidge do hereby support the Casa Grande Ruins National Monument expansion and recommend that

Congressoman Ann Kirkpatrick sponsor legislation to accomplish such a boundary expansion to

preserve ad protect culturally significant and sensitive sites adjacent to and nearby the existing Casa

Gtande Ruins National Monument

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Cou I of the City of Co 1 e Arizona on

this 28 day of May 2Q13

omas R Shope ayor

AT EST APPROVED AS TO FORM

1M a
orma Ortiz City Cler DenFitzgibbonsCitAttomey



FUvI13HIRKAZKIRKAZ OOSXML

111 H51 ORII

Orierina Sioature of Member

113T7z CONGRESS
1ST SESSIO

To niodify the boundar of tlie Casa Grande Riins National DZoimment
and for other pu1oses

IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESETTATNES

1reIiRiaraiC1 introduced tlie folloming bill Lieh vas referred to tle

Committee on

A BILL

To modify the boundai of the Casa Grande Ruins National

DZonwnent and for other purposes

1 Be it enacted by t1e Senate and House ofRepesetita

2 tives of the United States offlnertica ia Coagess assenbled

3 SECTION 1 SHORT TITLE

4 This 1et ma be cited s the Casa Grande Ruins

5 Natimlal P4oiiument Bouudaiy Zodification Act of 2013

6 SEC 2 FINDINGS

7 Congress fiilds the following

8 1 Casa Grande Ruin Resei vas set

9 aside on lllarcl 2 1889 proclaimed as the Nations

fVHLC050913050913218xm1 54705013

May 9 2013 602pm



FMI3IQRKAZKIRKAZ OOSXML

1 first archeological preseive on Juie 22 1892 aud

2 redesignated as Casa Grande Ruins Tatioilal DZonu

3 ment ontugiist 3 1918

4 2 Casa Grande Ruins National Mouument

5 protects one of the finest aschitectural eamples of

6 13th Centtuv Hohokam culture in the tlmerican

7 Southest knoi to eari5 Spaiusl ea1lorers as the

8 Gret House

9 3 Casa Graiide is oiily part of the stoi5 of

10 this ancient to1 that ma5r hae covered 2 square

11 miles

12 4 Receiit suiejs aiidiesearcll have deter

13 miuec that the area of the Great House aaid the il

14 lage surrounding it et be5ond the curreiit

15 inonuinent botuldaiy

IE SEC 3 DEFINITIONS

17 In this Act

18 1 P29rThe teriil mal ineans the map ei1

19 titled Proposed Casa Grande Ruins Boundai

20 AZodification numbered 303100934 aald dated

21 Januai5 3010

22 2 ZONUMENTThe term Monument

23 means the Casa Graaide Ruins Natioiial DZonument

24 in the State of izona

fVHLC1050913050913218xm1 54705013

May Q 2013 602pm



FM I3KIRKAZKIRKAZ005XML

3

1 3 SECRFT1ri11le teriu Seeretary means

2 the Secretary of the Interior

3 4 STtTEThe term State means the State

4 of izona

S SEC 4 ACQUISPlION r1ND TRANSFER OF ADMINISTRATIVE

JURISDICTION OF LANDS

7 a t1CQUtSiTZOV oFLTSThe Secretaiy is au

8 thorized to acquire b donation eachange or purchase

9uith donated or approlriate fitnds froin lling onlers

10 on15 the prirate or State laids or interests in lands en

11 era113 depicted on the mal to be administerecl aslart of

12 the DZomiment

13 b TrvsFFR or nnzNisTTnJrRrsrcrro

14 To T7rE NPSTle follozng Federal aids as generally

15 depicted on the map are hereb3 vitldranni from a11 forms

16 of entiy appropriation and disposal under the public lasid

17 lavs loeation eiiti andlatent uider the mining laws

18 and operation of the ii7ineral leasing aild geothermal leas

19 ing las aud mineral materials laas aud admiiustrative

20 jurisdictioii of sucli Federal lands is hereb5 transferred to

21 the National Park Sei to Ue administered as part of

22 the DZonwuent

23 1 The approaiinatel5 38 acres of Federal

24 landachniiiistered by tle Biueau of Land Mailage

25 ment

fVHLC050913050913218xm1 54705013

May 9 2013 602 pm



FM13KIRKAZUIRKAZOOSXML

1 2 The alpromatel3 741 acies of Federal

2 land of adniriistered by the Bureau of Indian lf

3 fairs

4 c TsvsrE oFAnunISTRaT JuRisicrror

5 TOBIAAdministratie jurisdiction oftleapproiiiatel

6 35 acres of Pederal land administered by the National

7 Park Seilce as generally depicted on the mp as Lands

8 to be Transferred to BIA are hereb transferred to the

9 Bureuof Indian ffairs for the pwposes of thc San Cr

10 los Irrigation Project

11 d9v2izsrsaTrONUpon acquisition or transfer

12 of the laalds identified in subsections a aild b tlie Sec

13 retai slall achllinister those lands as part of the Monu

14 meilt in accordance ith the lazs geierallalplicable to

15 units of the National ParkSrstem includii7g

16 1 the National Park Serice Orgainc tict 16

17 USC 1 et seq and

18 2 the Act of ugust 21 1935 16 USC 461

19 et seq

20 e BouNVxrsDlnUPDt1E

21 1 TRarSFERSUpon completion of tlle

22 transfers pursuaiit to subsectiou b the Secretai5

23 shall modify tle boundai of thePIonument aceord

24 irg15 and shall update the inap to refleet sucli

25 transfers

EVHLC050913050913218xm1 54705013

May 9 2013 602 pm



FM13KIRKAZKIRKAZ OOSXML

5

1 2 lC@UISITtOnsUpon completion of a nyof 2

the acquisitions pursnaiit to subsectioua the Sec 3

retary sha11 modify the boundai of the PZonument 4

a ceordingl3aild shall upda tethe inal to reflect such 5

acquisitions 6

f PI PON FIL Tlema pshall be on file aild 7

a ailallefor insl ectionin t1 ealpropriateoffices of the 8

National Pa rkSer iceU SDepartment of tl eInterior 9

SEC 5 ADMIlVISTRATIONOFSTATE TRUSTIANDS10

Tl eSecret2i may enter in to a nagreemeiit ith the ll

State to pro defor cooperative iiianagemeut of the a 12

pro matelp200 acres of State trust lailds genera113 de 13

picted on the inapf

VHLC050913050913218xm154705013 May
9 2013 6 02pm



P
ro

p
o

se
d

A
d
d
it
io

n
s

SS
a

f
A

Q
1

W
C

1

A
n

N
fD

o
N

a
y

G
i

w
61

W
D

O
N

0
C

m
C

i
o

M
c

C
p

Dd
c

3
N

n
3

d
N

O

o
p
az mcn

o
i

a
p

D
y

J
Z

n
N

0
o
N

O
l

c
o

p
w

yN

o
m

3
N

o
m

o
i

G

oi
w

n

i
w

W
i0

N
y

N
N

n
m

a
m3

c
i

m
i

o
c

7
n

7
M

7
c

Z
n

ai
W

co
0

7
w1

rn

o
o
0

0
7

p
2

n
7

o
c
n

m
vd

m
m

o
Z

J
C

ua
y

n
o

g
d

o
w

o
7

z
Jv

n
N

J
n

o

m
0

0
0

N
p

N

G
O

O
p

O
U

S
O

H
lD

N
l

J
R

W N
G

W
N a N

N
N

O
W

A

N
O
i o

d
m

v
m

oD

D
j

r
o

o
a
3

d
y

e
u
e

T
1

W
N

N

o
c

o
o
N

o
0

o
m

W
o
C

o
m

f7
l
1

S
N

0
0

d
II A

p
1

0
1

n

o
j

A
c
o

o
v

m
a

m
o

3
m

m
m

m
o o

m
m

c
N

7 N
7 y W C

O
01

I
N

0
I

v

I
i
i

a
I

i

M

I
I



z
r
w

O
T

N
Z

1
C

3
Np

O
a

tii
N

N
c

cD
p

7

N
0

N
X

n
N

a
nx

v
o

c
o

c
T

p

7
N

Q
V

N
D

fD
C

7
2

O
i

N
N

c
f
l
j

n
N

y

o
n

I

s
m

n

cn
a

i
G

a
o

w
m

W
o

m
o

7
N
i

W
p

W
N

CD

N
n

c
n

O
O

CD
N

N
7

W
r

r
n

S
a

m
o

o
c
i

D
j

I1
l

D
m
c

1
1

W
v

V
n

p
m

m
n

o
A

a
N
o

m
N

ti
3

D
1

4
s

p
p

m

3 Q N
p r

z
o

m
m

Z
V

L 3
O

pp
C

C y a

w
o

n

0
0

N
3

O
d

II
p

tp

A
A

j

N
S

ir

C
a

N
N

O

O C 7 G

n
1

N 3
a

v

z



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
9c. 

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Police Department 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Daniel Hughes, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:    Intergovernmental Agreement with Pinal County  
                     Sheriff’s Office to accept K-9 Russ  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: IGA with PCSO for K-9  Meeting Date: August 19, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:   
 
Enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the Pinal County Sheriff’s Office 
(PCSO) to accept a Pinal County, Belgian Malinois K-9, Russ #2085, Pinal County 
Animal Control #61196 (K-9), currently a member of PCSO, to assist the Florence 
Police Department in performing their law enforcement functions. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:     
 
The Florence Police Department (FPD) currently has two K-9s assigned to the Patrol 
Division.  One of the K-9s became unresponsive as a drug detection dog.  The Pinal 
County Sheriff’s Office (PCSO) had Russ available as a single purpose drug detection 
dog.   PCSO, however, utilizes dual purpose K-9s and therefore would like to give Russ 
to FPD at no cost.   Russ has already received drug detection training and has been 
certified.  This acceptance will save the Police Department the cost of a replacement 
dog and training hours. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:    
 
Enter into an IGA, accepting the K-9 Russ from PCSO. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:    
 
Intergovernmental Agreement 
Florence Police Department Request Letter to Pinal County Sheriff’s Office 
 



1 
 

When Recorded Return to: 
 
Clerk of the Pinal County 
Board of Supervisors 
P.O. Box 827 
Florence, Arizona  85132 

 
 
 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
PINAL COUNTY AND THE TOWN OF FLORENCE REGARDING  

LAW ENFORCEMENT BELGIAN MALINOIS K9, RUSS #2085,  
PINAL COUNTY ANIMAL CONTROL #61196  

 
This Intergovernmental Agreement (Agreement) is entered into this ____ day of 

______________, 2013, by and between Pinal County, a political subdivision of the State of 
Arizona (Pinal) on behalf of the Pinal County Sheriff’s Office (PCSO), and the Town of 
Florence, a municipal corporation of the State of Arizona (Florence). 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Pinal and Florence are authorized to enter into this agreement pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-
951, et seq. 

 
B. By action of their respective governing bodies taken at a regularly scheduled meeting of 

each body, Pinal and Florence have approved execution of this Agreement. 
 

C. Pinal County and the Pinal County Sheriff’s Office and the Town of Florence and the 
Florence Police Department share complementary interests in preventing, deterring, 
responding to, and investigating emergency, public safety, and criminal incidents within 
the Town of Florence, which lies within the boundaries of Pinal County. 
 

D. Pinal County wishes to transfer to Florence, Belgian Malinois K9, Russ #2085, Pinal 
County Animal Control #61196 (K9), currently a member of PCSO, to assist the Florence 
Police Department in performing their law enforcement functions. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 

hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

1. The above recitals are incorporated into this Agreement as if set forth hereinafter in their 
entirety. 

 
2. Upon execution of this Agreement, Pinal shall transfer control and ownership of PCSO 

K9 Russ #2085 to Florence. Pinal relinquishes all rights, title, and interest in the K9 and 
all responsibility for his care, training, conditions and actions to Florence. 

 
3. Florence accepts full ownership of the K9.  



2 
 

4. In accepting full ownership of the K9, Florence assumes complete responsibility for his 
condition and actions. Florence agrees that Pinal has no liability for damages to any 
property or personal injury including injury or death to any person arising from or 
incident to the transfer of ownership of the K9 or his subsequent use or disposition. 

 
5. Florence agrees to indemnify, release Pinal from any and all claims, losses, costs, 

expenses or liability and otherwise hold harmless Pinal and its employees and officers 
from any actions that may arise from the care and control of the K9. 
 

6. Florence agrees to purchase or otherwise acquire in its name, any and all required 
licenses and records within 72 hours of receiving the K9. 

 
7. Florence acknowledges that it has not exchanged anything of value except this agreement 

and waiver of liability for the K9. 
 

8. If for any reason, Florence shall no longer desire to utilize the K9, Florence agrees that 
Pinal has “Right of First Refusal” as to any subsequent transfer of ownership of the K9. 

 
9. Florence accepts the K9 as is. Florence is fully aware that Pinal makes no warranty of 

guaranty of the physical condition, temperament or future behavior actions of the K9. 
 

10. All notices or communications required under this Agreement from either party to the 
other shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given when the notice is 
delivered in person or deposited in a U.S. Mailbox in a postage prepaid envelope 
addressed as follows:  

 
   Pinal County 
   County Manager   
   31 N. Pinal St. 
   Florence, AZ  85132 
 
   Town of Florence  
   Town Manager 
   P.O. Box 2670 
   Florence, AZ  85132 
    

11. The failure to exercise any right, power or privilege under this Agreement shall not 
operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall a single or partial exercise thereof preclude any 
other or further exercise of that or any right, power or privilege. 

 
12. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as either limiting or extending the lawful 

jurisdiction of either party hereto other than as expressly set forth herein. 
 

13. The Parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Arizona.  

 



3 
 

14. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties, and no statements, 
promises or inducements made by either party, their agents or employees that are not 
contained herein shall be valid or binding.  This Agreement may not be altered except in 
writing and signed by each of the parties hereto. 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto agree to carry out the terms of this 
Agreement and have executed this Agreement the day, month and year first written above.  

 
Town of Florence, a municipal corporation of 
the State of Arizona 
 
 
By: _________________________________ 
         Town Manager 
 
Date: ________________________________ 
 
Attest: _______________________________ 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Town Attorney  
 
 

Pinal County, a political subdivision of the 
State of Arizona 
 
 
By: _________________________________ 
         County Manager 
 
Date: ________________________________ 
 
Attest: _______________________________ 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Deputy County Attorney 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 

FLORENCE POLICE DEPARTMENT 
425 N. Pinal St. / P.O. Box 988  Florence, AZ 85132 

Bus: (520) 868-7681 • Fax: (520) 868-0158 
Daniel Hughes, Chief of Police 

 
July 22, 2013 
 
 
Sheriff Paul Babeu 
Pinal County Sheriff’s Office 
971 N. Jason Lopez  
Florence, Arizona  85132 
 
Dear Sheriff Babeu: 
 
It has come to my attention the Pinal County Sheriff’s Office has elected to remove the K-9, “Russ” from 
active service as a dual purpose dog.   The Florence Police Department would like to request that “Russ” 
be given to the Department’s K-9 Unit to be utilized as single purpose drug detection dog.   We have 
experienced some issues with one of our current single purpose dogs and have recently removed it from 
service.    
 
Thank you for your consideration in this matter.   As always, the Florence Police Department and our 
resources are available should the Pinal County Sheriff’s Office need assistance.   
 
If you should have any questions, please contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Daniel Hughes,  
Chief of Police 
Florence Police Department 
425 N. Pinal Street 
Florence, AZ  85132 
520-868-7658 
Daniel.Hughes@florenceaz.gov 
     
 
       



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
9d.  

MEETING DATE:  August  19,  2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia 
                                     Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:  Acceptance of the letter of resignation from  
                    Barbara J. Kelly for her seat on the Redevelopment 
                   Commission.    

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resignation Redevelopment Commission                                              Meeting Date: August 19, 2013  
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:ACTION: 
 
Accept the letter of resignation from Barbara J. Kelly for her seat on the Redevelopment 
Commission, with regret.   
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Ms. Barbara J. Kelly submitted a letter of resignation for her seat on the Redevelopment 
Commission on June 17, 2013.  The letter of resignation was received by the Town 
Clerk’s Office on June 24, 2013.  Ms. Kelly asked that her resignation be held until July 
31, 2013. 
 
Town staff is seeking applications for vacancies on the following Board and 
Commissions:  Historic District Advisory Commission, Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Board, Planning and Zoning Commission - Alternate, and Redevelopment Commission.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends accepting the letter of resignation from Barbara J. Kelly for her seat 
on the Redevelopment Commission.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Barbara J. Kelly Letter of Resignation 
Redevelopment Commission Member List 





Updated 8-5-2013 

 
Redevelopment Commission  

(4 Year Term) 
Meets the Fourth Tuesday of the Month at 6:00p.m.  

5 members 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman to be appointed every January by Council 

 
 
Sharon Speck  
13952 N. Kendras Pl 
P O Box 1156 
Florence, AZ 85132 
(520) 868-0641 (work) 
(520)510-8264 
sharon.speck@nbarizona.com 
Appointed:  1/7/2013 
Expires: 12/31/2016 
 
Vicki Kilvinger 
3912 N. Iowa Avenue 
Florence  AZ  85132 
(520) 868-9430 
Appointed:  6/18/2012 
Expires:  12/31/2014 
 
Barbara J. Kelly 
P O Box 550 
Florence, AZ 85132 
(520) 560-5610 (home) 
Email:  barbarakelly@centurylink.net 
Appointed:  2/22/2011 
Expires:  12/31/2014 
 
Elizabeth Kizer - Chairman 
3634 N. Balboa Dr. 
Florence, AZ 85132 
928-245-7805 (home) 
Email: ekizer@gmail.com  
Appointed:  1/7/2013 
Expires: 12/31/2016 
Chair Expires: 12/31/13 
 
 
 
 

Vacant 
Expires:  12/31/2016 
Vice-Chair Expires 12/31/2013 
 
 
Staff Liaison 
Scott Bowles 
P.O. Box 2670 
Florence, AZ 85132 
(520) 868-7549 (work) 
scott.bowles@florenceaz.gov    
 
Council Liaisons 
Councilmember Tom Celaya 
801 W. Adamsville 
P.O. Box 2670 
Florence, AZ 85132 
Cell:  520-705-8703 
 
Vice-Mayor Tom Smith 
191 N. Bailey 
P O Box 1810 
Florence,  AZ  85132 
Home:  520-868-4473 
Cell:  520-705-1221 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 
JUNE 27, 2013, AT 4:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, LOCATED AT 
775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present: Rankin, Smith, Hawkins, Montaño 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 27, 2013 
Page 1 of 4 

Absent: Councilmember Celaya; Walter; Woolridge  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Rankin led the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
There were no public comments.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of award of CDBG 111-12 ADA Curb Cuts 
Project contract to Standard Construction Company, Inc., in the amount not to 
exceed $288,091.00. 
 
Mr. Ernie Feliz, Special Districts Manager, stated the bid opening was on May 31, 2013, 
in which two bids were received for the Curb Cuts Project.  The project will entail 
curbing along Main Street.   The bids have been reviewed and all documents are in 
order.  Staff is recommending the award of bid to Standard Construction Company, Inc. 
in an amount not to exceed $288,091.00.    
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the Town was given $300,000 from SSP Funds.  He inquired 
why the Town did not spend it all and why is the Town utilizing some of its own money. 
 
Mr. Feliz stated the funding will be utilized for payment to Standard Construction 
Company, administrative fees and for drawing and signage.  He said all of the money 
will be spent.   
 



Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 27, 2013 
Page 2 of 4 

Mayor Rankin inquired if this project will include the brickwork that is to be done on Main 
Street that is required by SHPO.   
 
Wayne Costa, Public Work Director, stated that during the inception, it was required that 
the handicap ramps meet ADOT criteria.  The ADOT criteria has exception to allow 
diagonal ramps at each of the corners.  Staff utilized Federal Highway Administration’s 
standards to accommodate the handicap ramps.  The handicap ramps are required to 
proceed with the Streetscape Project.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the crosswalks will have the stamped brick as well. 
 
Mr. Costa stated in 2004, the PAR identified that the crosswalks and intersections would 
be stamped; however, that is not part of this project.   
 
Mr. Jess Knudson, Assistant Town Manager, stated that the Town will piggyback on the 
curb cut project for the Streetscape Project to save money on improvements to the 
crosswalks and intersections along Main Street.  He explained the improvements that 
will be made in the downtown area.   
 
Mr. Knudson said ideas from the Streetscape Committee couldn’t be utilized within the 
scope of the grant because access to the curbs weren’t ADA compliant.    
 
Mayor Rankin said that the stamped concrete may deteriorate from the historical value 
of Main Street.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins said the stamped concrete will be an improvement.  He said it 
will differentiate the crosswalks.  The crosswalks will not have to be constantly 
repainted. 
 
Vice-Mayor Smith inquired if the crosswalk by Kokopelli’s will be done as well. 
 
Mr. Costa stated that the crosswalk in front of Kokopelli’s will be done.  The crosswalk 
will be moved to the north because of the posts that are there.  Sidewalk cuts will be 
done to accommodate the crosswalk.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Vice-Mayor Smith, and carried to 
award the CDBG 111-12 ADA Curb Cuts Project contract to Standard Construction 
Company, Inc., in the amount not to exceed $288,091.00. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the Disposal Agreement between the Town 
of Florence and Central Arizona Solid Waste, Inc. 
 
Mr. Wayne Costa, Public Works Director, said the agreement will be to transfer of waste 
disposal services to citizens and the Town for self-haul items in regards to bulk waste 
and solid waste.  He said the Town did go out for bid and received three bids: 

− Was a no bid 



Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 27, 2013 
Page 3 of 4 

− Central Arizona Solid Waste, which is twelve miles away from the Town core, 
and one mile away from the northernmost Town limits 

− Third bid was for 32 miles away 
 
Mr. Costa said it was determined that Central Arizona Solid Waste was the low bidder.  
The fee is $25.06 on weights of less than 1,000 pounds, and $35.29 per ton for any 
waste above 1,000 pounds.  He said this included in the Town’s user rates for 
sanitation, in which the customer pays $17.00 per month; $12.50 is for RAD for their 
portion and the balance is for administrative fee and land fill costs.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the residents are required to hold animal feces for one month 
for bulk pickup. 
 
Mr. Costa said that residents can dispose of animal feces but it has to be bagged and 
tied and can be disposed of with the containerized trash.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded Councilmember Hawkins, and carried 
to approve the Disposal Agreement between the Town of Florence and Central Arizona 
Solid Waste, Inc.  
 
1. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
There were no public comments.   

 
2. CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Vice-Mayor Smith stated that he was part of the first committee for the Streetscape 
Project.  He said discussions have been going on for years.  He thanked Mr. Knudson 
for his work on the Streetscape Project.   

 
3. ADJOURNMENT 

 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Vice-Mayor Smith, and carried to 
adjourn the June 27, 2013 meeting at 4:16 p.m. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 



Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 27, 2013 
Page 4 of 4 

I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the 
Florence Town Council meeting held on June 27, 2013, and that the meeting was 
duly called to order and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN MEETING HELD ON MONDAY , JULY 1, 2013, 
AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, LOCATED  AT 775 NORTH 
MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER; 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:  

 
Present: Rankin, Smith, Hawkins, Montaño, Walter, Wooldridge   
Absent:  Celaya 

 
INVOCATION PERFORMED BY REVEREND JOHN JOHNSON, FIRS T 
PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH, PC.  
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2013 
Page 1 of 6 

 
Reverend John Johnson, First Presbyterian Church, PC., performed the invocation.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Rankin led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Mayor Rankin asked for a moment of silence in honor of the fallen firefighters that lost 
their lives in the Yarnell, Arizona fire.  
  
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues wit hin the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment t o three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by tho se commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a m atter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss o r take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matter s are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
There were no public comments.  

 
MOTION TO ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILI TY DISTRICT 
NO. 1 BOARD. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adjourn to the Merrill Ranch Community Facility District No. 1 Board.  

 
Ordinance No. MRCFD1 110-13:  
 
Mr. Charles A. Montoya, District Manager, read Ordinance No. MRCFD1 110-13 by title 
only.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2013 
Page 2 of 6 

AN ORDINANCE OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATI ON OF THE 
PROPERTY WITHIN THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT TO 
TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH ONE HUNDRED DOLLA RS ($100.00) 
OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMAT ED TO BE 
RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30TH DAY OF JUNE 2014 (First  Reading June 3, 2013, 
second reading June 17, 2013). 
 
Mr. Mike Farina, District Treasurer, stated that the ordinance is to adopt a secondary ad 
valorem property tax levy in an amount of $3.55 per $100 of Net  
Assessed Valuation (NAV) for the Fiscal Year 2013-2014.  The total levy consists of 
$3.25 per $100/NAV, estimated at $435,426 for debt service for General Obligation 
Bonds and $0.30 per $100/NAV, estimated at $40,193  for operations and maintenance.  
The total to be levied is $3.55 per $100/NAV, or $475,619. 
 
On motion of Boardmember Walter, seconded by Boardmember Hawkins, and carried 
to adopt Ordinance No. MRCFD1 110-13. 
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACI LITY DISTRICT 
NO. 1 BOARD. 
 
On motion of Boardmember Walter, seconded by Boardmember Montaño, and carried 
to adjourn from the Merrill Ranch Community Facility District No. 1 Board.  
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILI TY DISTRICT 
NO. 2 BOARD. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adjourn to the Merrill Ranch Community Facility District No. 2 Board. 
 
Ordinance No. MRCFD2 209-13:  
 
Mr. Charles A. Montoya, District Manager, read Ordinance No. MRCFD2 209-13 by title 
only 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATI ON OF THE 
PROPERTY WITHIN THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT TO 
TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH ONE HUNDRED DOLLA RS ($100.00) 
OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMAT ED TO BE 
RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30TH DAY OF JUNE 2014 (first  reading June 3, 2013, 
second reading June 17, 2013). 
 
Mr. Mike Farina, District Treasurer, stated that the ordinance is to adopt a secondary ad 
valorem property tax levy in the amount of $3.55 per $100 NAV for Fiscal Year 2013-
2014.   The total levy consists of a $3.25 per $100/NAV, estimated at $332,414 for debt 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2013 
Page 3 of 6 

service for General Obligation Bonds, and $0.30 per $100/NAV, estimated at $30,684, 
for operations and maintenance.  The total estimated revenue from the levy will be for 
$3.55 per $100/NAV, or $363,098. 
 
On motion of Boardmember Montaño, seconded by Boardmember Walter, and carried 
to adopt Ordinance No. MRCFD2 209-13. 
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACI LITY DISTRICT 
NO. 2 BOARD. 
 
On motion of Boardmember Montaño, seconded by Boardmember Smith, and carried to 
adjourn from the Merrill Ranch Community Facility District No. 2 Board. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Ordinance No. 596-13:  
 
Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, read Ordinance No. 596-13 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY,  ARIZONA, 
LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITH IN THE TOWN 
OF FLORENCE SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON  EACH ONE 
HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT T O RAISE THE 
AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR GENE RAL 
MUNICIPAL EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 3 0TH DAY OF JUNE 
2014, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. (First Reading Ju ne 3, 2013, Second 
Reading June 17, 2013). 
 
Mr. Mike Farina, Finance Director, stated that the Town of Florence levies a primary 
property tax annually. The rate that was levied last year was $1.0517 per $100 NAV.  
The current property tax rate is $1.0963 per $100 NAV to raise the same amount of 
property tax levied last year.  The proposed property tax levy for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
is $814,526 which includes new construction of $29,456 or 2% increase over the current 
levy.  The rate has increased this year by levying the maximum allowable.  The increase 
is $2.19 per $100 of home valuation.   
   
Mr. Farina stated that the Town levies an ad valorem or secondary property tax for the 
Merrill Ranch Streetlight Improvement Districts No. 1, No. 2, and No. 3.  This year, due 
to an adequate fund balance, there will be no property tax levy.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, to adopt 
Resolution No. 596-13, declaring an emergency. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the need to increase property tax is due to the lower valuation 
of property. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2013 
Page 4 of 6 

Mr. Montoya responded that the increase in property tax due is to the lower valuation of 
property.     
 
Mayor Rankin would like to see the tax rate below $1.00. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
 
Mayor Rankin:  Yes 
Vice-Mayor Smith:  Yes 
Councilmember Hawkins:  Yes 
Councilmember Montaño:  Yes 
Councilmember Walter:  Yes 
Councilmember Woolridge:  Yes 
 
Motion Carried:  Yes:  6; No:  0 
 
Resolution No. 1403-13:  
 
Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, read Resolution No. 1403-13 by title only.   
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY,  ARIZONA, 
ADOPTING THE 2013 – 2023 LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS AND I NFRASTRUCTURE 
IMPROVEMENTS PLAN FOR THE TOWN OF FLORENCE DATED FE BRUARY 28, 
2013. 
 
Mr. Mike Farina, Finance Director, stated that this plan is part of the basis for the 
calculation of the impact fees.  The Town engaged Duncan Associates to conduct a 
study and develop the plan so that the Town could be in full compliance with the new 
State Legislation, Senate Bill 1525, regarding impact fees.  A draft of the plan has been 
available for review for several months and was discussed in detail at a Council Work 
Session in February 2013.  It was also discussed during a public hearing on May 20, 
2013.  The resolution is for adoption of the plan.   
 
Mr. Clancy Mullen, Duncan Associates, stated that they had previously provided a 
presentation at the workshop and the public hearing.     
 
Mayor Rankin inquired what the probability is of the legislature being changed again this 
year.   
 
Mr. Mullen stated that he is not aware of any upcoming changes.     
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adopt Resolution No. 1403-13. 
 
CONSENT: All items indicated by an (*) will be hand led by a single vote as part of 
the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a mem ber of the public objects 
at the time the agenda item is called. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2013 
Page 5 of 6 

 
*Authorization to accept a $5,000.00 donation to th e Florence Police Department 
Canine program. 
 
*Approval of accepting donations of $1,500 from Nat ional Bank of Arizona, $1,500 
from Johnson Utilities, $1,000 from Pulte Homes, an d $1,500 from Southwest 
Value Partners, for a total of $5,500,for the creat ion of an economic development 
marketing brochure.   
 
*Approval of the Special Event Liquor License for t he Chamber of Commerce to 
hold the Annual Casino Night Event on July 27, 2013 .   
 
*Approval of the June 3, 2013 and June 17, 2013 Tow n Council minutes. 
 
*Approval of accepting the register of demands endi ng May 31, 2013, in the 
amount of $1,942,133.12. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to approve the Consent Agenda, as written.   
 
 DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
Manager’s Report 

Department Reports 
Community Development  
Courts 
Finance 
Fire  
Library 
Parks and Recreation 
Police 
Public Works 

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
There were no public comments. 
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Walter thanked the donors who generously gave to the Town for the 
Canine Program and Economic Development marketing brochure.  She invited the 
public to the Freedom Fest events on July 4, 2013.   
 
Councilmember Montaño stated that there were issues with the garbage cans.  He 
asked those who have issues to contact Right Away Disposal. 
 
Vice-Mayor Smith stated that he is aware that there may be minor issues with the 
change over of sanitation services.  Some residents do not have containers.  He asked 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2013 
Page 6 of 6 

that they contact the appropriate personnel to resolve the issues.  He said overall RAD 
did a good job.  He added that the Town has advertised the change in sanitation 
service.   
 
Mayor Rankin reminded everyone to enjoy their July 4th events.  He said the Coolidge 
Little League Park is hosting Devon White, who is doing a motivational talk and throwing 
the first pitch for the Little League.   
 
 ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
For the purpose of discussion and consultation with  the Town Attorney pursuant 
to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(4) regarding pending litig ation with the Arizona 
Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ). 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adjourn to Executive Session. 
 
ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Vice-Mayor Smith, and carried to 
adjourn from Executive Session. 
 
 ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting at 7:00 pm.  
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on July 1, 2013, and that the meeting was duly called to order and 
that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk  



























 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION 

FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
10a. 

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT: Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                     Community Development Director   
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance 599-13:  Merrill Ranch PUD  
                   Amendment (PZC-35-12-PUD) 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject:  Ordinance No. 599-13 Merrill Ranch PZC-35-12-PUD      Meeting Date:  August 19, 2013 
Page 1 of 6 

Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 599-13 for the Merrill Ranch PUD Amendment. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
This is a request by Jared Baxter, P.E., of the Baxter Design Group, LLC, on 
behalf of SWVP-GTIS MR, LLC, for approval of the following: 
 

An Amendment to a portion of the Merrill Ranch Planned Unit 
Development (PUD). The Amendment proposes to change the land 
uses for portion of the PUD that is generally located at the 
northwest and northeast corners of Hunt Highway and Felix Road 
in Florence, Arizona. The intent of this PUD Amendment is to 
replace a portion of the concentrated commercial, retail, 
employment and mixed land uses planned for the subject area with 
single-family detached residential uses consistent with the adjacent 
neighborhoods of the Anthem at Merrill Ranch development. 

 
In 2000, planning for areas to the southeast of Magic Ranch, Rancho Sendero 
and Johnson Ranch began. The result of that planning effort was the previously 
approved Road Runner Estates Planned Area Development (PAD in Pinal 
County).  The Road Runner Estates PAD was superseded by the Merrill Ranch 
North Village administrative PUD Amendment approved by Town Council in July 
of 2005. Merrill Ranch was envisioned to provide diverse housing options for this 
rapidly developing area of Pinal County. The primarily residential community was 
designed to be a conventional neighborhood-based development centered on a 
network of open spaces, traditional parks and abundant neighborhood amenities.   
 
The project continued to evolve and another amendment was approved in 2007. 
The Merrill Ranch Planned Unit Development still had a strong residential focus, 
but additional attention was provided towards future commercial, employment 



Subject:  Ordinance No. 599-13 Merrill Ranch PZC-35-12-PUD      Meeting Date:  August 19, 2013 
Page 2 of 6 

and mixed use development opportunities. Some of which was anticipated 
because of the projected future alignment of a planned North-South Freeway.  
 
Then the majority of the country experienced what seemed to be an endless 
recession that caused a decline in the housing market.  As with most residential 
projects, the Florence housing market lost steam and opportunity soon turned 
into financial ruin for most housing companies. Finally, in late 2009, WHM Merrill 
Ranch Investments, LLC, lost the majority of its interest in the property 
designated as Merrill Ranch. Through the foreclosure process WHM Merrill 
Ranch Investments, LLC, retained approximately 112 acres directly east of the 
subject property. The remainder of the property was acquired by two separate 
owners.  The overall land area of Merrill Ranch Development is separated into 
three major parcels. The third owner of land within this PUD is currently Curis 
Resources, Inc. (AZ). 
 
This amendment proposes to change the land uses for approximately 401 gross 
acre of land in this PUD that is generally located at the northwest and northeast 
corners of Hunt Highway and Felix Road. The intent of this PUD Amendment is 
to redesignate a portion of the concentrated commercial, retail, employment and 
mixed land uses planned for the subject area with single-family detached 
residential uses consistent with the adjacent neighborhoods of the Anthem at 
Merrill Ranch development.   
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
Currently, the subject area of the Merrill Ranch PUD is entitled for commercial 
and employment mixed uses. Again, plans in 2006-2007 projected this area to be 
in close proximity to the future freeway corridor, thus a large amount of 
commercially zoned property was justified and needed to provide the 
employment opportunities for surrounding communities. 
 
With the most probable future North-South Freeway alignment being moved to 
the east of this area and with the substantial changes in the development 
markets over the past few years, the owners are ready to make changes to this 
plan. Once the Arizona Department of Transportation finalizes the alignment of 
the future North-South Freeway, staff anticipates the property owner amending 
the PUD once again in the area of the a potential transportation corridor to take 
advantage of the various commercial and higher intensity land uses that logically 
fit near major transportation corridors and interchanges.  
 
In the adjacent Anthem at Merrill Ranch community, Pulte Group is having 
success in home sales in the single-family residential housing market. As 
discussed, the currently planned commercial land use of the subject area directly 
adjacent to existing residential subdivisions is no longer the highest and best 
use. Changing the land use from commercial to residential is consistent with the 
factors described in this report, more reflective of market needs and improves 



Subject:  Ordinance No. 599-13 Merrill Ranch PZC-35-12-PUD      Meeting Date:  August 19, 2013 
Page 3 of 6 

compatibility of adjacent land uses. With this proposed PUD amendment, 
portions of the current area designated for commercial use will be revised to 
allow differing residential development opportunities. 
 
This Amendment to the Merrill Ranch PUD would allow for the following: 
 

• A portion of the property (approximately 401 acres) to be rezoned to R-1 
single family residential zone (MR PUD Low Density-LD). 
 

• Reduce the amount of non-residential planned land at the north corners of 
the Hunt Highway and Felix Road intersection. 

 
• Create opportunities to reallocate the non-residential land uses along the 

future alignment or interchanges of the planned North-South Freeway. 
 

• Incorporate neighboring minor and major collectors to provide better 
connectivity to existing collectors and arterials within the Anthem at Merrill 
Ranch Community.  
 

• Provide an opportunity for new subdivisions and rooftops in an area that 
as the appropriate infrastructure to support such. 

 
GENERAL PLAN 
 
The subject site’s proposed uses and PUD Zoning are consistent with the Town 
of Florence 2020 General Plan. The subject site retains the General Plan 
designation of Master Planned Community (MPC). The MPC category is 
provided on the General Plan Land Future Use Map to better accommodate the 
various types of residential, commercial and office uses that may occur within 
large master planned communities.  
 
PROPOSED/EXISTING LAND USES 

 
This PUD Amendment proposes to move existing residential land use into the 
subject area and therefore the impact to the area should be minimal.  The area is 
surrounded by the Anthem at Merrill Ranch community, which consists of mostly 
residential land uses and open spaces. A local commercial area is retained along 
the adjacent Hunt Highway frontage.   
 
RESIDENTIAL COMPONENT 

Residential uses within the Merrill Ranch PUD development focus on a few types 
of housing options. The lots types and densities were established by the current 
PUD and are not being modified with this Amendment. The diversity of housing 
products and market points offers options for a variety of home purchasers and 
will make for a well-rounded community.   



Subject:  Ordinance No. 599-13 Merrill Ranch PZC-35-12-PUD      Meeting Date:  August 19, 2013 
Page 4 of 6 

  
Architectural styles will vary with the builder and the size of home. It is envisioned 
that the master developer will help determine the character of the homes being 
built in Merrill Ranch PUD. Builders will be encouraged to offer street-facing 
porches or patios, a variety of options to individualize the homes, color variety 
and low-water-use front yard designs. 
 
The design requirements and guidelines with respect to the proposed zoning 
revisions have been established in the approved Merrill Ranch PUD approved in 
2007.  With this rezoning proposal, SWVP-GTIS MR, LLC, will follow all 
approved development requirements and guidelines in the proposed PUD 
amended area. 
 
PARKS AND OPEN SPACE COMPONENT 
 
The Merrill Ranch project will provide residents with a quality living environment 
as well as a range of self-contained recreational activities. The developer/owner 
will work with Town staff to appropriately locate and design community parks 
within the development that can be utilized by the public where said parks are 
planned to be dedicated to the Town. 
 
The Parks and Open Space requirements and guidelines with respect to the 
proposed zoning revisions have been established in the approved Merrill Ranch 
PUD approved in 2007.  With this rezoning proposal, SWVP-GTIS MR, LLC, will 
follow all approved development requirements and guidelines in the proposed 
PUD amended area. 
 
COMMERCIAL COMPONENT 
 
This Amendment highlights the conveniently located commercial areas along the 
northwest and northeast corners of Hunt Highway and Felix Road, which allows 
for direct arterial access and buffering of land uses. The 2007 PUD shows that 
there are other commercial areas within Merrill Ranch as well.  

 
Development on the commercial sites will occur based on the rate of surrounding 
growth and market demand. The types of end users may vary, but it is expected 
that the following types of community-oriented businesses could occupy the 
commercial site: grocery store, drug store, restaurants, and other appropriate 
retail, office, and service uses allowable in the Merrill Ranch PUD and as 
supported by the size and scale of the subject parcel. Commercial areas are 
needed as the Town grows and as discussed in the Town’s General Plan. The 
project’s proposed commercial aspect is an important component of the plan that 
provides for future employment and shopping opportunities. All development of 
the commercial sites will be subject to the Town’s Design Review process to 
ensure high quality site planning and architectural standards. 
 



Subject:  Ordinance No. 599-13 Merrill Ranch PZC-35-12-PUD      Meeting Date:  August 19, 2013 
Page 5 of 6 

WATER AND SEWER  
 

Potable water for Merrill Ranch Community will be provided by Johnson Utilities 
(JU).  The Town of Florence previously authorized Johnson Utilities to expand its 
respective service area to include the project area from Felix Road to the western 
boundary of the project site.  JU is in the process of obtaining governmental 
approval of this service area expansion.  It is anticipated that they will receive 
approval soon. Upon approval, JU will provide service to the area west of Felix 
Road. 
 
A water master plan report and plans, meeting the approval of the Town 
Engineer, are required prior to the approval of Final Plats for this development. If 
required, this PUD shall permit the placement of the necessary water 
infrastructure, including, but not limited to water mains, wells, pumps and water 
storage facilities within the project. 
 
TRANSPORTATION 
 
The transportation and circulation plan will be developed consistently with 
recommendations from the Community Development Director and Town 
Engineer. Required improvements, as well as any potential phasing of required 
improvements, shall be further determined upon the review of detailed 
construction plans for the subject site. 
 
As part of the development of this area, a network of roadways will be 
established to serve the transportation needs of the area.  Specifically, a collector 
road will be assigned to provide connectivity from the Anthem at Merrill Ranch 
development in the north and continue to provide access to Felix Road to the 
east.  This collector road along with its landscape and drainage areas will help 
provide a desired buffer between the proposed residential and commercial 
development. 
 
The Circulation and Street Improvements requirements with respect to the 
proposed zoning revisions have been established in the approved Merrill Ranch 
PUD approved in 2007.  With this rezoning proposal, SWVP-GTIS MR, LLC, will 
follow all approved development requirements and guidelines in the proposed 
PUD amended area. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Staff contends that this Amendment would have a positive financial impact on the 
Town as the change facilitates the ongoing development of single-family homes 
and the added rooftops and population will support future non-residential 
development, including regional employment and commercial centers, which are 
expected to develop in areas with access to the future ADOT North-South 
freeway alignment. Substantial employment and commercial land is retained 



Subject:  Ordinance No. 599-13 Merrill Ranch PZC-35-12-PUD      Meeting Date:  August 19, 2013 
Page 6 of 6 

along the Hunt Highway corridor for development that is less contingent upon the 
development of the future freeway. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission found that the proposed Merrill Ranch 
PUD Amendment request to change the land uses for a portion of the Merrill 
Ranch PUD is in compliance with the Town’s General Plan and is in the interest 
of general welfare, health and safety of the public. The Planning and Zoning 
Commission has forwarded a unanimous favorable recommendation on the 
Merrill Ranch PUD Amendment to the Mayor and Town Council, subject to the 
following conditions:  
 

1. The development of the subject site shall be in conformance with the 
Merrill Ranch amended Planned Unit Development (PUD) book dated July 
2007, as well as this Amendment to the PUD dated May 22, 2013, any 
applicable Development Agreements, Town codes and ordinances. 
 

2. Property Owners agree to waive claims for diminution in value pursuant to 
Proposition 207 [A.R.S. § 2-1134] pursuant to the waivers attached hereto 
as Exhibit B. 
 

3. The rear yard setback for the residential areas shall be reduced from 20’ 
to 15’ in the Merrill Ranch PUD area. 

 
4. Any additional conditions deemed necessary by the Town Council. 

 
Public Hearing and First Reading was done on August 5, 2013.  
 
On August 19, 2013, motion to adopt Ordinance No. 599-13 for the Merrill Ranch 
PUD Amendment. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Ordinance No. 599-13 
Application 
Exhibit A Legal Description 
Exhibit B 207 Waiver 
Public Hearing Notice 
Merrill Ranch PUD Amendment Book 



ORDINANCE NO. 599-13     
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE 
MERRILL RANCH PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PZC-35-12-
PUD).  

 
WHEREAS, a request to amend the Merrill Ranch Planned Unit 

Development has been proposed and a public hearing has been held by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has found the Merrill 

Ranch Planned Unit Development Amendment is in conformance with the 
Town’s General Plan; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has forwarded the 

Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence a favorable recommendation for the 
Merrill Ranch Planned Unit Development Amendment, subject to certain 
conditions; and 

 
WHEREAS, said proposal has been considered by the Mayor and Council 

of the Town of Florence and the recommended Merrill Ranch Planned Unit 
Development Amendment has been found to be appropriate and further found to 
promote the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the Town and its 
orderly growth. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 
The Merrill Ranch Planned Unit Development Amendment, as described in 
EXHIBIT A attached hereto, is hereby approved, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

1. The development of the subject site shall be in conformance with the 
Merrill Ranch amended Planned Unit Development (PUD) book dated July 
2007, as well as this Amendment to the PUD dated May 22, 2013, any 
applicable Development Agreements, Town codes and ordinances. 
 

2. Property Owners agree to waive claims for diminution in value pursuant to 
Proposition 207 [A.R.S. § 12-1134] pursuant to the waivers attached 
hereto as Exhibit B. 
 

3. The rear yard setback for the residential areas shall be reduced from 20’ 
to 15’. 
 

 
 



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 19th day of August 2013. 

       

______________________________ 
 Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:                                             APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________  ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 
 
 
 



























































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
11a. 

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Scott Bowles 
                                     Economic Development Coordinator 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No.  1411-13, granting final approval 
to the issuance of one or more series of the Industrial 
Development Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc. Tax-
Exempt and/or Taxable Education Revenue Bonds. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Subject: Resolution No. 1411-13 to approve IDA revenue bond issuance for TELESIS Preparatory Academy 
Meeting Date: August 19, 2013 
Page 1 of 2 

 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1411-13:  A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL TO 
THE ISSUANCE OF ONE OR MORE SERIES OF THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, INC. TAX-EXEMPT AND/OR TAXABLE 
EDUCATION REVENUE BONDS (TELESIS PREPARATORY ACADEMY PROJECT), 
SERIES 2013, IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED 
$6,000,000 TO FINANCE THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, RENOVATION, 
IMPROVEMENT AND EQUIPPING OF EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES FOR TELESIS 
CENTER FOR LEARNING, INC. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
This resolution will allow TELESIS Preparatory Academy to finance and refinance, up to 
$5 million, the costs of acquiring, constructing, improving, and equipping land and 
buildings to be used as charter school facilities located in Lake Havasu City, Arizona.  
Currently, TELESIS Preparatory Academy provides educational services to 
approximately 400 students in kindergarten through twelfth grades.  The Town of 
Florence approved a similar IDA bond issue in June 2013 for Mohave Accelerated 
Learning Center Schools. 
 
There is no liability incurred by issuing these bonds. By issuing these bonds, the Town 
or the IDA is not precluded from making other issues now or in the future. The issuance 
of industrial development bonds is contingent on the borrower’s strength and the 
comfort that the underwriter has with the applicant.  
 
 
 



 
Subject: Resolution No. 1411-13 to approve IDA revenue bond issuance for TELESIS Preparatory Academy 
Meeting Date: August 19, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There is no fiscal impact to the Town of Florence or any liability through issuing these 
bonds. Per ARS Statues, the risk is borne by TELESIS Preparatory Academy and those 
that purchase the bonds.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1411-13, for approval of the of the 
Industrial Development Authority bonds for TELESIS Preparatory Academy.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1411-13 
Ryler Carlock and Applewhite letter dated August 5, 2013 
Ryler Carlock and Applewhite letter dated August 8, 2013 
Proposed Agenda Matter 
 
 
 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1411-13 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, GRANTING APPROVAL TO THE ISSUANCE OF ONE OR 
MORE SERIES OF THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, INC. TAX-EXEMPT AND/OR TAXABLE 
EDUCATION REVENUE BONDS (TELESIS PREPARATORY 
ACADEMY PROJECT), SERIES 2013, IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $6,000,000 TO FINANCE THE 
ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, RENOVATION, IMPROVEMENT AND 
EQUIPPING OF EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES FOR TELESIS CENTER 
FOR LEARNING, INC. 

 

WHEREAS, The Industrial Development Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc. 

(the “Authority”), is an Arizona nonprofit corporation designated as a political subdivision 

of the State of Arizona empowered under the Industrial Development Financing Act, 

A.R.S. §§35-701 through 761 inclusive (the “Act”), to issue revenue bonds for the 

purposes set forth in the Act, including the making of secured and unsecured loans for 

the purpose of financing the acquisition, construction, improvement or equipping of a 

“project” (as defined in the Act) whenever the Board of Directors of the Authority finds 

such loans to be in the public interest; and 

WHEREAS, the term “project” includes within its meaning any land, any building 

or other improvements, and all real and personal properties which are suitable for an 

educational institution or organization established under the provisions of Title 15, 

Chapter 1, Article 8, Arizona Revised Statutes, and owned by a nonprofit organization; 

and 

WHEREAS, Telesis Center for Learning, Inc. (the “Borrower”), an Arizona 

nonprofit corporation designated as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of 

the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), has requested the 



 

2 

Authority to issue its revenue bonds for the purpose of assisting the Borrower in 

financing and refinancing, as applicable, the costs of land and buildings located in Lake 

Havasu City, Arizona (the “Facilities”), for use by the Borrower in connection with its 

charter school operations; and 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the purposes of the Act, the Authority proposes to 

issue one or more series of its tax-exempt and/or taxable Education Revenue Bonds 

(Telesis Preparatory Academy Project), Series 2013 (the “Bonds”), in an aggregate 

principal amount of not to exceed $6,000,000, the proceeds of which will be loaned to 

the Borrower to (i) finance and refinance, as applicable, the costs of acquiring, 

constructing, renovating, improving and equipping the Facilities, (ii) fund any required 

reserve funds as set forth in the Indenture pursuant to which the Bonds will be issued, 

and (iii) pay certain expenses relating to issuance of the Bonds (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority, by a resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors 

of the Authority at a lawful meeting called and held on August 19, 2013 (the “Authority 

Resolution”), granted final approval to the issuance and sale of the Bonds in aggregate 

principal amount not to exceed $6,000,000; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 35-721.B of the Act, the proceedings of the 

Authority under which the Bonds are to be issued require the approval of this Council; 

and 

WHEREAS, approval of the Bonds is not made in consideration of any bribe, gift, 

gratuity, or direct or indirect contribution to any political campaign; and  

 



 

3 

WHEREAS, this Council has had presented to it information regarding the 

Project and the Bonds and is informed and advised regarding the Project and the 

Bonds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Town Council, of the 

Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 

SECTION I. APPROVAL OF PROCEEDINGS.  The proceedings of the 

Authority under which the Bonds are to be issued in aggregate principal amount not to 

exceed $6,000,000 are hereby approved, subject, however, to all the terms and 

conditions contained in the Authority Resolution. 

SECTION II. CERTIFICATION.  It is hereby CERTIFIED under penalty of perjury 

that the approval of the proceedings is not made in consideration of any bribe, gift, 

gratuity, or direct or indirect contribution to any political campaign. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of 
Florence, Pinal County, Arizona, this 19th day of August, 2013. 

 

      _______________________________ 
      Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 
 

 

 



















 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
11b.  

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:       Fire Department/Finance 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Ernest Feliz, Special District Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    FEMA SAFER Grant Application 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 

Subject: Request for SAFER-FEMA Grant  Meeting Date: August 19, 2013 
Page 1 of 2 

Motion to approve submission of a grant application by the Town of Florence for Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency 
Response (SAFER) grant program funds. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Town staff seeks approval to submit an application for SAFER grant funding for salary 
and benefits for three firefighter positions. The funding will be for two years. Adding the 
three positions will enable the Town to meet National Fire Protection Association 
(NFPA) standards for staffing. The total amount of grant funding is $463,902, which is 
what will be requested with this application.  
 
The purpose of the SAFER Grant is to provide funding to assist fire departments in 
increasing the number of firefighters to help communities meet industry minimum 
standards, attain 24-hour staffing to provide adequate protection from fire and fire-
related hazards and to fulfill traditional missions of fire departments. The goal of the 
SAFER Grant is to assist with staffing and deployment capabilities in order to respond 
to emergencies and assure that communities have adequate protection from fire and 
fire-related hazards. While not required for a SAFER Grant, it is preferable that the 
enhanced staffing levels of grantees ensures that all first-arriving apparatus are staffed 
with a minimum of four qualified personnel, which meets National Fire Protection 
Association (NFPA) standards. 
  
Staff intends on using the requested personnel to assist in the complete staffing of 
Station No. 2 in Anthem. This will allow for an additional firefighter to be placed on the 
engine to four personnel at all times. This project grant, if approved, will also help the 
Town transition to providing services to annexed areas, if that occurs. 
 
Awards are expected to be announced beginning in November 2013. 
 



Subject: Request for SAFER-FEMA Grant  Meeting Date: August 19, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
This application will be for full funding of $463,902 by FEMA to pay the salary and 
benefits of three firefighters for two years.  Matching funds are not required; however, 
for each firefighter there will be additional expenditures of approximately $3,500 for 
turnouts, uniforms and other related costs.  Following the two years of grant funding, the 
firefighters’ salary and benefits will revert to Town funding. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Mayor and Town Council approve the submission of a 
SAFER Grant application to FEMA in the amount of $463,902 for the salary and 
benefits of three firefighter positions for two years. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
SAFER 2013 Grant Budget Estimate 
Grant Request Cover Page 
Grant application Guide 



Town of Florence
Estimate of FY2015

salary and benefits

position

 total salary & 

benefits 

No. of positions 

sought total cost per year

Firefighter/Paramedic 77,317$          3 231,951$               

463,902$               

Total Grant Request 463,902$               

3 Firefighters/Paramedic x 2 years @ $77,317 per year





 

 

FY 2013 STAFFING FOR ADEQUATE FIRE AND EMERGENCY 
RESPONSE (SAFER) 

FUNDING OPPORTUNITY ANNOUNCEMENT (FOA) 

OVERVIEW INFORMATION 
 

Issued By:  US Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA), Grant Programs Directorate (GPD) 

Catalogue of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Num ber:  97.083 

CFDA Title:  Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER)  

Funding Opportunity Announcement Title:  Fiscal Year (FY) 2013 Staffing for Adequate Fire and 
Emergency Response (SAFER) 

Authorizing Authority for Program:  SAFER Authority is derived from Section 34 of the Federal Fire 
Prevention and Control Act of 1974, as amended (15 U.S.C. §2229a et seq.) 

Appropriation Authority for Program:  Department of Homeland Security Appropriations Act, 
2013 (P.L. 113-6, Division D) 

FOA Number:  DHS-13-GPD-083-000-99 

Key Dates and Time: 

Application Start Date:    Monday, July 29, 2013 
Application Submission Deadline Date:  Friday, August 30, 2013 
Anticipated Funding Selection Date:  N/A 
Anticipated Award Date:    No later than September 30, 2014 
 
Other Key Dates: N/A 

Intergovernmental Review:  Is an intergovernmental review required?  Yes   No 

 

 

 

 

  



 

2 
 

FOA EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Program Type:  Select the applicable program type:  New   Continuing   One-time 

Date of origin for Program:  November 24, 2003 

Funding Opportunity Category:  Select the applicable opportunity category:  

 Discretionary/Competitive   Mandatory/Non-competitive   Both 

Application Process:  DHS makes all funding opportunities available through the common electronic 
“storefront” grants.gov, accessible on the Internet at http://www.grants.gov. If you experience 
difficulties accessing information or have any questions, please call the grants.gov customer support 
hotline at (800) 518-4726.  

Components/Directorates must ensure applicants and recipients use the appropriate OMB Standard 
Forms when applying for financial assistance. Application forms and instructions are available at 
Grants.gov. To access these materials, go to http://www.grants.gov, select “Apply for Grants,” and 
then select “Download Application Package.” Enter the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance 
(CFDA) and/or the funding opportunity number located on the cover of this announcement. Select 
“Download Application Package,” and then follow the prompts to download the application package. 
To download the instructions, go to “Download Application Package” and select “Instructions.” 
Applications are accessible via https://portal.fema.gov. 

Links to the application will be available via the US Fire Administration’s (USFA) Web site 
http://www.usfa.fema.gov and the Grants.gov Web site http://www.grants.gov. 

For additional details, please see Section X. Application and Submission Information.  

Eligible Applicants: 

The following nonprofit entities are eligible to apply directly to FEMA under this solicitation: 

 Fire Departments   National, state, local, or tribal organizations that represent the interests of 
volunteer firefighters 

For additional information, please see Section III. Eligibility Information. 

Type of Funding Instrument :  Grant   Cooperative Agreement   Loan 

Cost Share or Match:   Cost Match   Cost Share   None Required 

Maintenance of Effort:   Yes   No   

Management and Administration:  Administrative costs up to three percent of the awarded amount 
are allowable under the Recruitment and Retention category only. 



 

3 
 

FULL FOA 
I. Funding Opportunity Description 

Program Overview and Priorities 

FY 2013 SAFER is a competitive/discretionary grant program comprised of two categories: 

• Hiring of Firefighters  (Career, Combination, and Volunteer Fire Departments) 

• Recruitment and Retention of Volunteer Firefighters  (Combination and Volunteer Fire 
Departments and national, state, local, or tribal organizations that represent the interests of 
volunteer firefighters) 

Hiring of Firefighters  (Priorities) 

• First priority : Rehiring laid-off firefighters 

• Second priority : Retention of firefighters who face imminent layoff or filling positions vacated 
through attrition but not filled due to economic circumstances 

• Third priority : Hiring new firefighters 

The appropriated funds are to be administered as indicated below. Specific funding parameters are 
highlighted as the result of a recommendation via the criteria development process (CD) or as 
required by Federal Fire Prevention and Control Act of 1974, as amended:  

• 15 percent is set aside for the hiring of new firefighters (CD) 

• 10 percent is set aside for the recruitment and retention of volunteer firefighters (15 USC § 
2229a(a)(2)) 

o No more than 33 percent of the total amount allocated for the recruitment and retention of 
volunteers can be awarded to national, state, local, or tribal organizations that represent the 
interests of volunteer firefighters (CD) 

• 10 percent is set aside for grants awarded to volunteer or majority volunteer departments for 
hiring of firefighters. A majority volunteer fire department is made up of more than 50 percent 
of personnel who do not receive financial compensation for their services, other than life, 
health, and worker’s compensation insurance, or a nominal stipend payment, including certain 
paid-on-call personnel. It may be necessary to go out of rank order to select a sufficient 
number of applications in order to meet the 10 percent requirement. (15 USC § 
2229a(a)(1)(H)) 

• If less than 10 percent of the funds available for the hiring of firefighters are awarded to 
volunteer and majority volunteer fire departments, the remaining funds must be transferred to 



 

4 
 

provide grants for the recruitment and retention of volunteer firefighters (15 USC § 
2229a(a)(1)(H)) 

Recruitment and Retention of Volunteer Firefighters  Category  (Priorities) 

• The highest priority  is to assist departments experiencing a high rate of turnover and with 
staffing levels significantly below the ideal staffing level required to comply with National Fire 
Protection Association (NFPA) standards 1710 or 1720. 

Program Objectives 

• The purpose  of SAFER Grants is to provide funding directly to fire departments and national, 
state, local, or tribal organizations representing the interests of volunteer firefighters to assist 
them in increasing the number of firefighters to help communities meet industry minimum 
standards and attain 24-hour staffing to provide adequate protection from fire and fire related 
hazards, and to fulfill traditional missions of fire departments.  

o SAFER Grants achieve this purpose by funding: (1) the hiring of new firefighters, (2) the 
rehiring of firefighters that have been laid off, (3) the retention of firefighters facing 
imminent layoffs, or (4) the filling of positions that were vacated through attrition. 
Additionally, SAFER grants fund fire departments and national, state, local, or tribal 
organizations representing the interests of volunteer firefighters to assist with the 
recruitment and retention of volunteer firefighters.  

• The goal  of the SAFER Grants is to assist local fire departments with staffing and deployment 
capabilities in order to respond to emergencies, and assure that communities have adequate 
protection from fire and fire-related hazards. 

SAFER intends to improve or restore local fire departments’ staffing and deployment capabilities so 
they may more effectively and safely respond to emergencies. With enhanced or restored staffing 
levels, grantees should see a reduction in response times and an increase in the number of trained 
personnel assembled at the incident scene.  

While not required for a SAFER Grant, it is preferable that the enhanced or restored staffing levels of 
all SAFER Grantees should ensure all first-arriving apparatus are staffed with a minimum of four 
qualified personnel (to meet NFPA standards) who are capable of initiating the suppression response. 
Ultimately, SAFER Grantees should achieve more efficient responses and safer incident scenes 
thereby ensuring communities have improved protection from fire and fire-related hazards. 

The FY 2013 SAFER Grant plays an important role in the implementation of the National 
Preparedness System by supporting the building, sustainment, and delivery of core capabilities 
essential to achieving the National Preparedness Goal (NPG) of a secure and resilient Nation. 
Delivering core capabilities requires the combined effort of the whole community, rather than the 
exclusive effort of any single organization or level of government.  

The FY 2013 SAFER Grant’s allowable costs support efforts to build and sustain core capabilities 
across the Prevention, Protection, Mitigation, Response, and Recovery mission areas. Examples of 
tangible outcomes from FY 2013 SAFER include building and sustaining core capabilities, such as 
Public and Private Services and Resources, and Public Health and Medical Services. 



 

5 
 

For additional details, please refer to the National Preparedness Goal, First Edition, September 2011 
at http://www.fema.gov/pdf/prepared/npg.pdf. 

Criteria Development Process 

Each year, FEMA convenes a panel of fire service professionals to develop funding priorities for 
SAFER Grant opportunities. The panel makes recommendations about funding priorities as well as 
developing criteria for awarding grants. 

The nine major fire service organizations represented on the panel are:  

• International Association of Fire Chiefs  

• International Association of Fire Fighters  

• National Volunteer Fire Council  

• National Fire Protection Association  

• National Association of State Fire Marshals  

• International Association of Arson Investigators  

• International Society of Fire Service Instructors  

• North American Fire Training Directors  

• Congressional Fire Service Institute  

The content of this SAFER FOA reflects implementation of the criteria development panel’s 
recommendations with respect to the priorities, direction, and criteria for awards. Based on the 
recommendations, funding priority is given to applications that effectively address the evaluation 
elements as outlined. 

 

II. Funding Information 

Award Amounts, Important Dates, and Extensions 

Available Funding for the FOA:  $320,920,083 

Projected Number of Applications: 2500 

Projected Number of Awards:   300 

Projected Award Start Date:  November 1, 2013 

Projected Award End Date:  September 30, 2014 



 

6 
 

Period of Performance:  24 months under the Hiring of Firefighters category; up to 48 
months for the Recruitment and Retention of Volunteer 
Firefighters category 

Period of Performance   

Is an extension to the period of performance permitted?  Yes   No 

Extensions to the period of performance will be considered only through formal requests to FEMA 
with specific and compelling justifications why an extension is required. All extension requests must 
be submitted to FEMA at least 60 days prior to the end of the period of performance and must 
address: 

• Reason for delay 

• Current status of the activity/activities 

• Approved period of performance termination date and new project completion date 

• Remaining available funds 

• Budget outlining how remaining funds will be expended 

• Plan for completion, including milestones and timeframes for achieving each milestone and the 
position/person responsible for implementing the plan for completion 

• Certification that the activity/activities will be completed within the extended period of 
performance without any modification to the original Statement of Work approved by FEMA 

• Potential impacts if FEMA does not approve the extension request or approves the request for 
a shorter period of time than requested 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

7 
 

III. Eligibility Information 

Table 1 identifies, in general, eligible entities that can apply for FY 2013 SAFER Funding within each 
category. For more specific information, also see IV. Funding Restrictions. 

Table 1: Eligible Entities 

Entity Volunteer Fire 
Departments 

Combination 
Fire 

Departments 

Career Fire 
Departments 

National, state, 
local, or tribal 

volunteer 
firefighter 
interest 

organizations 

Hiring of 
Firefighters 
Category 
(Hiring/Rehiring of 
New Firefighters 
Activity) 

���� ���� ���� 

 

Recruitment and 
Retention of 
Volunteer 
Firefighters 
Category 

���� ����  ���� 

 

 

Ineligible Applicant Types (under this announcement ) 

• Federal fire departments and fire departments under contract to the Federal Government 
whose sole responsibility is the suppression of fires on federal installations or lands 

• For-profit fire departments and organizations (i.e., fire departments that do not have 
specific nonprofit status or that are not municipally based) 

• Ambulance services, emergency medical service organizations, rescue squads, 
auxiliaries, dive teams, and urban search and rescue teams 

• Non-federal airport or port authority fire departments whose sole responsibility is 
suppression of fires on the airport grounds or port facilities, unless the airport/port fire 
department has a formally recognized arrangement with the local jurisdiction to provide 
fire suppression on a first-due basis outside the confines of the airport or port facilities 

• Fire stations that are part of, controlled by, or under the day-to-day operational direction 
of a larger fire department or agency, or are not independent 

• State and local agencies, such as forest service, fire marshals, emergency management 
offices, hospitals, and training offices 

• Career fire departments (under the Recruitment and Retention Category) 



 

8 
 

Ineligible Applicant Types (under this announcement ) 

• National, state, local, or tribal organizations representing the interests of volunteer 
firefighters, supporting firefighter volunteerism, or otherwise having an interest in 
volunteer firefighters (under the Hiring of Firefighters Category) 

 
 

IV. Funding Restrictions 

Restrictions on Use of Award Funds  

DHS grant funds may only be used for the purpose set forth in the grant and must be consistent with 
the statutory authority for the award. Grant funds may not be used for matching funds for other 
Federal grants/cooperative agreements, lobbying, or intervention in federal regulatory or adjudicatory 
proceedings. In addition, federal funds may not be used to sue the Federal Government or any other 
government entity. 

Pre-award costs are not allowable for SAFER Hiring Grants except for grant writer fees under the 
SAFER Recruitment and Retention Grants. 

Federal employees are prohibited from serving in any capacity (paid or unpaid) on any proposal 
submitted under this program. Federal employees may not receive funds under this award. 

• Volunteer Fire Departments and Combination Fire Dep artments  may apply for funding 
under both categories (Hiring of Firefighters, Recruitment and Retention of Volunteer 
Firefighters). If the applicant wishes to apply for both categories, separate applications must be 
completed for each category. 

o Applicants are limited to one application for Recruitment and Retention and one application 
for hiring per application period. If an applicant submits two applications for the same 
category during a single application period, both applications will be disqualified. 

• Career Fire Departments  may apply for funding only under the Hiring of Firefighters category. 
Applicants are limited to one application during a single application period. If an applicant 
submits two applications for the same category during a single application period, both 
applications will be disqualified. 

o Municipalities and fire districts may submit applications on behalf of fire departments 
lacking the legal status to do so, such as those under the support of the municipality or 
district. Each eligible applicant is limited to one application for hiring per application period.  

• National, State, Local, or Tribal Organizations  representing the interests of volunteer 
firefighters and individual fire departments (volunteer or combination) may apply for funding 
under Recruitment and Retention of Volunteer Firefighters category.  

o Applicants are limited to one application for recruitment and retention per application 
period. If an applicant submits two applications for the same category during a single 
application period, both applications will be disqualified.  



 

9 
 

For additional details on restricted use of funds, see Appendix B. 

Hiring of Firefighters Category – Eligible Costs 

The only allowable costs under the Hiring of Firefighters Category, for new or rehired 
firefighters, are salary and associated benefits (actual payroll expenses). 

SAFER Funding will pay for the total salary and benefit costs for each funded position. 

Firefighters that are current employees or hired prior to the award date, except under the 
retention activity, are not eligible.  

• Salaries and benefits of firefighters hired under SAFER Funding while they are 
engaged in training are eligible. 

• Overtime costs are not eligible. However, costs for overtime that fire departments 
routinely pay as a part of the base salary or the firefighter’s regularly scheduled and 
contracted shift hours in order to comply with the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) are 
eligible.  

• Only full-time positions will be funded. A full-time position is one position that is 
funded for at least 2,080 hours per year, i.e., 40 hours per week, 52 weeks per year. 
However, recognizing many departments have shifts exceeding a 40-hour workweek, 
FEMA also will consider funding the job-sharing of a full-time position if the grantee 
has sufficient justification. A job-share position is a full-time position occupied by more 
than one person.  

Example : A department may hire two part-time staff persons at 28 hours each to fulfill 
the scheduled work hours of one 56-hour shift position. 

 
Hiring of Firefighters Category – Ineligible Costs 

• Pre-application costs, such as grant writer fees, administrative costs, and indirect 
costs associated with hiring of firefighters 

• Costs to train and equip firefighters (However, the salaries and benefits of firefighters 
hired under the SAFER Funding while they are engaged in training are eligible.) 

• Uniforms and physicals  

Volunteer and mostly volunteer fire departments may hire individuals to fill officer-level 
positions (e.g., chief, fire inspector, training officer, safety officer). However, as the goal of 
SAFER Grants is to enhance incident scene safety, all applicants must certify that the 
primary assignment (more than 50 percent of duties) of all SAFER-funded Firefighters will be 
an operational assignment (fire suppression) regardless of collateral duties.  

 

 

 



 

10 
 

Recruitment and Retention Category – Eligible Costs  

Applicants must correlate the activities for which funding is being requested and the 
identified recruitment or retention problems or issues being addressed. Additionally, FEMA 
will not fund activities if an applicant has not provided sufficient information detailing how an 
activity being funded will enhance recruitment and retention. 

The limited funding available for SAFER activities precludes the award of funding for 
operational activities, such as the purchase of firefighting equipment and vehicles. Personal 
protective clothing may be funded for newly recruited firefighters, but personal protective 
equipment for other types of members or existing members is not eligible. 

Applicants who propose to focus on retention of volunteers will receive equal consideration 
as applicants focusing on recruitment of volunteers. A focus on retention may include 
providing incentives for volunteer firefighter members to continue service in a fire 
department. All funded activities under Recruitment and Retention must be governed by 
formally adopted Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs). Minimally, these SOPs should 
specify who qualifies for each of the incentives, specific requirements for earning the 
incentives, and the disposition of the awarded incentives if an individual fails to fulfill the 
stipulations. 

Examples of initiatives that may receive funding include but are not limited to: 

• Nominal stipends for firefighters where the primary duty is an operational assignment 
(fire suppression) regardless of collateral duties. Departments may want to consult 
their jurisdiction to understand the full legal/financial implications involved with 
implementing/sustaining a program. Federal funding should not be used to supplant 
an existing program. 

• Insurance packages such as Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D), 
disability, health, dental, life 

• Reimbursement to members while attending required basic training (e.g., 
compensation for lost wages, mileage, lodging, per diem) 

• Marketing costs to recruit new volunteer members  

• Station internet access 

• Computers in common areas 

• LED/electronic signs (note: 75 percent of usage must be dedicated to Recruitment 
and Retention activities – additional restrictions apply; see the Environmental Historic 
Preservation Review section under Appendix A) 

• Station duty uniforms for new recruits (pants, shirts, hats) 

• Non-uniform clothing (t-shirts, jackets, pullovers, etc.) when as part of an award 
program 

• Station modifications (e.g., converting space into bunkroom - restrictions apply; see 
the Environmental Historic Preservation (EHP) Review section under Appendix A) 

• Salary and benefit costs for a recruitment and retention coordinator 



 

11 
 

Recruitment and Retention Category – Eligible Costs  

• Physicals (consistent with NFPA 1582) for new recruits only 

• Explorer, cadet, and mentoring programs (See Appendix A, Other Allowable Costs) 

• Staffing needs assessment 

• Administrative costs up to three percent of the total awarded amount in accordance 
with 2 CFR Part 225, Cost Principles for state, local, and tribal governments (OMB 
Circular A-87) or 2 CFR Part 230, Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations (OMB 
Circular A-122), as applicable. Applicants may apply for administrative costs if the 
costs are directly related to the implementation of the program for which they are 
applying. Administrative costs are identifiable costs directly associated with the 
implementation and management of the grant and cannot exceed three percent of 
the award .  

• Tuition assistance for higher education (including college tuition and not limited to 
firefighter training or education) and professional certifications (Note: coursework or 
certifications in this category should be more advanced than what the department 
typically funds for required minimum-staffing requirements).  

• Books and lab fees for higher education or professional certification (not including 
computers) 

• Costs for training not currently covered under the department’s operating budget  

• Awards program for participation in operational activities, like operational training 
and/or responding to incidents (e.g., length of service plaques, gift cards, non-uniform 
clothing). However, payments may not be retroactive for service prior to the award. 

• New Length of Service Award Programs (LOSAP) (funding of existing programs or 
retroactive payments are not eligible) 

• Mileage reimbursement for operational activities  

• Personal protective clothing gear for new recruits after they have successfully passed 
an NFPA 1582 compliant physical 

• Applications for funding in the Recruitment and Retention category could include 
activities requiring up to four years to complete (with proper justification) 

• Indirect costs for national, state, local, or tribal volunteer firefighter interest 
organizations that have a federally approved indirect cost rate agreement 

 

Recruitment and Retention Category – Ineligible Cos ts 

• Salary and benefits for firefighters 

• Costs incurred prior to award except for grant writer fees 

• Fire suppression equipment/vehicles 



 

12 
 

Recruitment and Retention Category – Ineligible Cos ts 

• Communication equipment including cell phones, pagers, portable radios, or Computer-
Aided Dispatch (CAD) systems 

• Retroactive payments or recognition for service prior to award 

• Cash payments for non-operational activities  

• Payments for travel to or participation in leisure activities such as theatre tickets, 
entertainment tickets, and trips (professional sporting events, etc.) 

• Costs associated with award banquets, such as food, refreshments, entertainment, or 
rental facilities. Reimbursement for actual awards (e.g., plaques, and trophies) is eligible. 

• Costs for training currently covered under the department’s operating budget, such as 
tuition or instructor fees for department-mandated, basic-level training 

• Services at a member’s personal residence (e.g., internet access, plowing of driveways) 
• Furniture (except for newly converted bunkrooms), televisions, fixtures, appliances (e.g., 

refrigerators), entertainment equipment  

• “Giveaways” such as pencils, pens, t-shirts, cups, mugs, or balloons, for recruitment 
events 

• Fees for courses and training that are available free of charge on the internet or at a 
state/local training facilities (e.g., NIMS 100, 700, 800) 

 

 

V. Application Review and Selection Information 

Application Review Information 

All complete and eligible applications are evaluated relative to SAFER Grant funding priorities. 
Answers to activity-specific questions as well as information submitted under the Department 
Characteristics section of the application will determine an application’s standing relative to stated 
priorities. This initial evaluation assesses how closely each application matches the program’s 
established priorities (see information on the funding priorities in Appendix A).  

Applications most consistent with the SAFER Grant funding priorities score higher in the automated 
evaluation. Automated evaluation scores are combined with peer review evaluation scores, with each 
score representing 50 percent of the total application score. 

A panel of at least three Peer Review Panelists performs the second phase of an application’s 
evaluation. These panelists evaluate the application using the Narrative Statement, answers to the 
general questions, and answers to the activity-specific questions. Each application is judged on its 
own merits against established criteria and is not compared to other applications.  

 



 

13 
 

Panelists will evaluate and score the following criteria: 

1. Hiring of Firefighters Category Narrative Elemen ts  

The Narrative Statement for applications requesting funding in this category must include Elements A 
through F. Each element will be evaluated independently by a Peer Review Panelist. The relative 
weight of the evaluation criteria in the determination of the grant award is listed below.  

A. Project Description (30%)  

• This statement should describe why the applicant needs the grant funds. 

• It should include how the requested firefighters will be used within the department and a 
description of the specific benefit these firefighters will provide for the fire department and 
community. 

• If the applicant is requesting funding under the Rehiring of Firefighters activity, the narrative 
should provide details as to when and why the vacancies occurred and how the vacancies 
have affected the service to the community.  

• Applications must discuss how the grant would enhance the department’s ability to protect 
critical infrastructure. 

B. Impact on Daily Operations (30%)  

• This statement should explain how the community and current firefighters are at risk without 
the requested firefighters and to what extent that risk will be reduced if the applicant is 
awarded.  

• Applications should discuss the impact the funded positions will have on NFPA compliance.  

C. Financial Need (30%)  

• This statement should explain the applicant’s organizational budget and its inability to address 
the need without federal assistance, including other actions the applicant has taken to meet 
their staffing needs.  

D. Cost Benefit (10%)  

• Applicants should explain any benefits the department or community will realize if the project 
described is funded (e.g., anticipated savings, efficiencies).  

E. Performance (Additional Consideration)  

•••• Applicants should explain their proven record of accomplishment for timely project completion 
and satisfactory performance of other Assistance to Firefighter Grants (AFG), FP&S, and 
SAFER Awards. 

 



 

14 
 

F. Veterans Preference (Additional Consideration) 

••••  Applicants should explain existing policy to recruit military veterans. 

 

2. Recruitment and Retention of Volunteer Firefight ers Activity 
Narrative Elements – Fire Departments 

The Narrative Statement for applications requesting funding in this category must include Elements A 
through E. Each element will be evaluated independently by a Peer Review Panelist. The relative 
weight of the evaluation criteria in the determination of the grant award is listed below: 

A. Project Description (30%):   

•••• This statement should describe how the applicant will use the grant funds.  

•••• It should include how the recruitment of new volunteer firefighters or retention of current 
volunteer firefighters will impact the department’s identified operational needs or capabilities.  

•••• Applicants should describe the specific benefit these firefighters will provide for the fire 
department(s) or community.  

•••• It should also identify and describe the department’s recruitment or retention problems or 
issues, and how the requested activities will address those needs.  

•••• Applicants should identify the specific goal of the recruitment and retention plan and how it will 
be implemented. 

•••• If the grant will have a regional impact, specific information should be included about which 
activities are part of the regional request and which activities are exclusive to a host applicant, 
if applicable.  

B.  Impact on Daily Operations (30%):   

•••• Applicants should describe how the community and current firefighters are at risk without the 
requested firefighters, and to what extent that risk will be reduced if the applicant is awarded.  

C. Financial Need (30%)  

•••• This statement should explain the applicant’s organizational budget shortfalls and its inability to 
address the need without federal assistance, including other actions the applicant has taken to 
meet their staffing needs.  

D.  Cost Benefit (10%)   

•••• Applicants should explain any benefits the department or community will realize if the project 
described is funded (e.g., anticipated savings, efficiencies).  



 

15 
 

•••• This statement should explain the high benefit for the costs incurred and if these costs are 
reasonable. 

•••• This statement should also provide justification for the budget items relating to the cost of the 
requested items. 

E.  Performance (Additional Consideration)  

•••• Applicants should explain their proven track record for timely project completion and 
satisfactory performance in other AFG, FP&S, and SAFER Awards. 

 

3. Recruitment and Retention of Volunteer Firefight ers Activity 
Narrative Elements –  National, state, local, or tribal volunteer 
firefighters interest organizations  

The Narrative Statement for applications requesting funding in this category must include Elements A 
through E. Each element will be evaluated independently by a Peer Review Panelist. The relative 
weight of the evaluation criteria in the determination of the grant award is listed below: 

A. Project Description (30%):   

• This statement should describe how the applicant will use the grant funds. 

•••• It should include how the recruitment of new volunteer firefighters or retention of current 
volunteer firefighters will impact the identified operational needs or capabilities of the fire 
departments participating in the application. 

•••• Applicants should describe the specific benefit these firefighters will provide for the fire 
department(s) and their respective communities. 

•••• Applicants should identify and describe the department’s recruitment or retention problems or 
issues, and how the requested activities will address those needs. 

•••• Applicants should identify the specific goal of the recruitment and retention plan and how it will 
be implemented. 

B.  Impact on Daily Operations (30%):   

•••• This statement should include how the region and/or all the fire departments (participating in 
this application), communities, and their current firefighters are at risk without the requested 
firefighters, and to what extent that risk will be reduced if the grant is awarded. 

 

 



 

16 
 

C.  Financial Need (30%)  

•••• Applicants should explain their organizational budget shortfalls and their inability to address 
the need without federal assistance, including other actions the applicant has taken to meet 
their staffing needs.  

D.  Cost Benefit (10%)   

•••• This statement should explain any benefits the applicant or their community will realize if the 
project described is funded (e.g., anticipated savings, efficiencies).  

•••• Applicant should describe if there is a high benefit for the costs incurred and if costs are 
reasonable. 

•••• Applicants should also provide justification for the budget items relating to the cost of the 
requested items.  

E. Performance (Additional Consideration) 

•••• Applicants should explain their proven track record for timely project completion and 

satisfactory performance in other AFG, FP&S, and SAFER Awards. 

 

VI. Post-Selection and Pre-Award Guidelines 

Notice of Award 

All successful applicants for all DHS grant and cooperative agreements are required to comply with 
DHS Standard Administrative Terms and Conditions available within Section 6.1.1 of 
http://www.dhs.gov/xlibrary/assets/cfo-financial-management-policy-manual.pdf. 

Upon approval of an application, the award will be made in the form of a grant. The date the approval 
of award is entered in the system is the “award date.” Notification of award approval is made through 
the e-Grant system through an automatic e-mail to the grantee point of contact listed in the initial 
application. Once an award has been approved and recorded in the system, a notice is sent to the 
authorized grant official. Follow the directions in the notification to accept your award documents. The 
authorized grant official should carefully read the award package for instructions on administering the 
grant and to learn more about the terms and conditions associated with responsibilities under federal 
awards. 

SAFER will evaluate and act on applications within 90 days following the close of the application 
period. It is projected that all awards will be made no later than September 30, 2014. 

 

 



 

17 
 

Administrative and Federal Financial Requirements 

Grantees are obligated to submit various financial and programmatic reports as a condition of their 
award acceptance. Please see below for a summary of financial and programmatic reports as 
required. 

Future awards and funds drawdown may be withheld if  these reports are delinquent.  

1. Federal Financial Reports (SF-425) Required Semi -Annually (For SAFER).  Recipients of 
SAFER Grants awarded on or after October 1, 2009, are required to submit semi-annual Federal 
Financial Reports (FFR, SF-425). The FFR, to be submitted using the on-line e-Grant system, will be 
due semi-annually based on the calendar year beginning with the period after the award is made. 
Grant recipients are required to submit an FFR throughout the entire period of performance of the 
grant. Reports are due no later than July 30 for the period January 1-June 30 and no later than 
January 30 for the period July 1-December 31. 

2. Grant Closeout Process.  Within 90 days after the end of the period of performance, grantees 
must submit a final FFR and final progress report detailing all accomplishments throughout the period 
of performance. After these reports have been reviewed and approved by FEMA, a closeout notice 
will be completed to close out the grant. The notice will indicate the period of performance as closed, 
list any remaining funds that will be de-obligated, and address the requirement of maintaining the 
grant records for three years from the date of the final FFR. The grantee is responsible for returning 
any funds that have been drawn down but remain as unspent on grantee financial records.  

Program Performance Reporting Requirements 

1. SAFER Quarterly (Programmatic) Performance Repor t. The awardees will be responsible for 
providing updated obligation and expenditure information on a quarterly basis. The applicant is 
responsible for completing and submitting a programmatic Performance Report using the e-Grants 
system. The programmatic Performance Report is due within 30 days of the end of each of the 
grant’s quarters. Quarters are based on the grant’s period of performance. 

2. Monitoring.  Grant recipients will be monitored periodically by FEMA staff, both programmatically 
and financially, to ensure that the project goals, objectives, performance requirements, timelines, 
milestone completion, budgets, and other related program criteria are being met. 

Monitoring may be accomplished through either a desk-based review or on-site monitoring visits, or 
both. Monitoring will involve the review and analysis of the financial, programmatic, performance, 
compliance and administrative processes, policies, activities, and other attributes of each federal 
assistance award, and will identify areas where technical assistance, corrective actions, and other 
support may be needed. 

The recipient is responsible for monitoring all sub-award activities to ensure compliance with federal 
and state laws, regulations, and guidance. Responsibilities include the accounting of receipts and 
expenditures, cash management, maintaining of adequate financial records, reporting and refunding 
expenditures disallowed by audits, monitoring, or other assessments and reviews. 

 



 

18 
 

3. Reporting requirements under the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 
2006 (FFATA) (Public Law 109-282), as amended by Sectio n 6202(a) of the Government 
Funding Transparency Act of 2008 (Public Law 110-252). As defined by the OMB, all new federal 
awards of $25,000 or more as of October 1, 2010, are subject to FFATA reporting requirements. 
“Federal awards” include not only prime awards for grantees, cooperators, and contractors, but also 
awards to sub-recipients. More information can be found at http://www.usaspending.gov/news. 

4. Financial and Compliance Audit Report.  Recipients that expend $500,000 or more of federal 
funds during their fiscal year are required to submit an organization-wide financial and compliance 
audit report. The audit must be performed in accordance with GAO’s Government Auditing 
Standards, located at http://www.gao.gov/yellowbook, and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, 
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, located at 
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars_default. Audit reports are currently due to the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse no later than nine months after the end of the recipient’s fiscal year. The state shall 
require that sub-grantees comply with the audit requirements set forth in OMB Circular A-133. 
Recipients are responsible for ensuring that sub-recipient audit reports are received and for resolving 
any audit findings. 

The grantee shall give FEMA, the sponsoring agency, through any authorized representative, access 
to and the right to examine all records, books, papers, or documents related to the grant, and the use 
and management of these funds. 

5. Required performance and financial reports for G rant Closeout.  Final performance report 
narrative (within the Closeout module in e-Grants) is due 90 days after the end of the period of 
performance. The Final SF-425 is due 90 days after the end of the grant period. 

 

VII. DHS FEMA Contact Information 

Contact and Resource Information 

This section describes several resources that may help applicants in completing a FEMA Grant 
Application. These points of contact are also available for successful applicants who may require 
assistance during execution of their award  

Financial and Administrative Information 

SAFER Help Desk: The SAFER Program staffs a Help Desk throughout the application period. The 
Help Desk can provide assistance with navigation through the automated application, as well as 
provide programmatic assistance with respect to questions of eligibility. The Help Desk can be 
contacted at (866) 274-0960 or via e-mail at firegrants@dhs.gov. The Help Desk hours of operation 
during the application period are from 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday. All times listed 
are eastern daylight times.  

Grant Programs Directorate (GPD):  FEMA GPD’s Grant Operations will provide pre- and post-
award administration and technical assistance for the grant programs included in this solicitation. 



 

19 
 

Additional guidance and information can be obtained by contacting the FEMA Call Center at (866) 
927-5646 or via e-mail at ASK-GMD@dhs.gov. 

FEMA Regional Fire Program Specialists: Each of the FEMA regions has specialists that can 
assist applicants with the application process. For information on your Regional Specialist, visit                           
http://www.fema.gov/fire-grant-contact-information. 

1. GPD Environmental Planning and Historic Preserva tion (GPD-EHP).  General guidance for 
GPD grantees and sub-grantees to comply with the EHP review process is provided in the EHP 
Supplement (URL). The FEMA GPD-EHP Team also provides guidance and information about the 
EHP review process to grantees and sub-grantees. All inquiries and communications about GPD 
projects or the EHP review process, including the submittal of EHP review materials, should be 
sent to gpdehpinfo@fema.gov. EHP Technical Assistance, including the EHP Screening Form, 
can be found at https://www.rkb.us/ehp_docs.cfm.  

Programmatic Information  

Centralized Scheduling and Information Desk (CSID):  CSID is a non-emergency comprehensive 
management and information resource developed by DHS for grants stakeholders. CSID provides 
general information on all FEMA grant programs and maintains a comprehensive database containing 
key personnel contact information at the federal, state, and local levels. CSID can be reached by 
phone at (800) 368-6498 or by e-mail at ASKCSID@dhs.gov, 9:00 AM – 5:30 p.m., Monday through 
Friday. All times listed are eastern times. 

Systems Information 

e-Grant:  For technical assistance with the e-Grant system, please contact the AFG Help Desk. The 
Help Desk can be contacted at (866) 274-0960 or by e-mail at firegrants@dhs.gov. 
 
 

VIII. Other Critical Information 

National Incident Management System (NIMS) Implemen tation  

Prior to allocation of any federal preparedness awards in FY 2013, grantees must ensure and 
maintain adoption and implementation of NIMS. 
 
Emergency management and incident response activities require carefully managed resources 
(personnel, teams, facilities, equipment and/or supplies) to meet incident needs. Utilization of the 
standardized resource management concepts such as typing, inventorying, and cataloging promote a 
strong national mutual aid capability needed to support delivery of core capabilities. Additional 
information on resource management and national Tier I NIMS Resource Types can be found at 
http://www.fema.gov/resource-management.  
 
FEMA has developed the NIMS Guideline for Credentialing of Personnel to describe national 
credentialing standards and to provide written guidance regarding the use of those standards. This 
guideline describes credentialing and typing processes, and identifies tools which Federal Emergency 



 

20 
 

Response Officials (FEROs) and emergency managers at all levels of government may use both 
routinely and to facilitate multijurisdictional coordinated responses. 
 
Although state, local, tribal, and private sector partners—including nongovernmental organizations—
are not required to credential their personnel in accordance with these guidelines, FEMA strongly 
encourages them to do so in order to leverage the federal investment in the Federal Information 
Processing Standards (FIPS) 201 infrastructure and to facilitate interoperability for personnel 
deployed outside their home jurisdiction. Additional information can be found at 
http://www.fema.gov/pdf/emergency/nims/nims_alert_cred_guideline.pdf 
 

IX. How to Apply 

Application Instructions  

Applications under the FY 2013 SAFER will be accessible at https://portal.fema.gov. The application 
will also be linked via the US Fire Administration’s (USFA) Web site http://www.usfa.fema.gov and the 
grants.gov Web site http://www.grants.gov. 

The automated e-Grant application was designed with many built-in help screens and drop-down 
menus to assist with the application process. 

The AFG on-line application system ONLY supports Internet Explorer (IE) browsers (IE 6 or higher). 

• Do not use any other browsers than IE when entering your information. 

• Do not have multiple browsers (“windows”) open when entering your information, even if you 
are using IE. 

There are several known problems entering application information using non-IE browsers, or having 
multiple browsers open, including but not limited to: 

• System failure to recognize correct information 

• System failure to capture and retain correct information 

• System functions like “cut and paste” being disabled 

• System resources like Help screens or drop down menus being unavailable 

There is no appeal process for inaccurate or incomplete information retained by the system due to 
improper or multiple browser usage by the applicant. Prior to submission and up to the application 
deadline, the on-line application can be saved, retrieved, and edited as required. 

Applicant tools and Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) will be posted on the AFG Web site 
http://www.fema.gov/firegrants. 



 

21 
 

IMPORTANT: Once you have submitted your application , you cannot change it.  You will not be 
allowed to update your application for any reason(s). Your primary point-of-contact will automatically 
be notified via e-mail once your application is received. 

 

X. Application and Submission Information 

NOTE: Application information must  match your organization’s SAM.gov profile. 

• Is your SAM Profile marked PRIVATE? If so, FEMA Grants Management Specialists will not be 
able to verify your active SAM registration. We recommend that you mark your SAM profile 
PUBLIC. Sensitive banking and financial data are not revealed in the public profile. 

• Application via e-Grants system: Eligible applicants apply for SAFER Funding on-line via the e-
Grants application at https://portal.fema.gov. The system will allow an authorized 
representative to login and create a username and password. 

• User Name/Password: If you have submitted any Assistance to Firefighters Grants (AFG, 
SAFER, FP&S, SCG) applications in a previous grant cycle, then you must continue to use the 
same username, password, and DUNS number for every FY2013 application.  

• FY2013 SAFER: On-line applications can only be submitted at https://portal.fema.gov. 

• Applications will be processed via http://www.fema.gov/firegrants (click prompt to access e-
Grant application). 

• Only applications submitted via the on-line, automated grant application system will receive an 
email confirmation. Applicants should print a copy of the confirmation for their records upon 
receiving verification that their application has been successfully submitted. Incomplete 
applications or applications submitted via any other electronic means, including e-mail or fax, 
will be considered ineligible. 

• To be considered eligible for funding, all applications must be completed and submitted 
electronically by 5:00 p.m. (EDT) on August 30, 2013. 

 

1. Content and Form of Application 

1. Application via e-Grants system:  Eligible applicants apply for SAFER Funding on-line via the e-
Grants application at https://portal.fema.gov. The system will allow an authorized representative to 
login and create a username and password.  

If you have submitted any Assistance to Firefighters Grants (AFG, SAFER, FP&S, SCG) applications 
in a previous grant cycle, then you must continue to use the same username and password for every 
FY2013 application(s). Eligible applicants apply for SAFER Funding on-line via the e-Grants 
application at https://portal.fema.gov. The system will allow an authorized representative to login and 



 

22 
 

create a username and password. If your organization is submitting more than one FY 2013 
application, you must use the same username and password used for prior year applications, as well 
as for each FY 2013 application. 

Applicants will have to completely fill out the following forms as part of the on-line e-Grants 
application: 

• Standard Form 424, Application for Federal Assistance 

• Standard Form 424A, Budget Information (Non-construction) 

• Standard Form 424B, Standard Assurances (Non-construction) 

• Standard Form LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (if the grantee has engaged or intends to 
engage in lobbying activities) 

• FEMA Form 20-16C, Certifications Regarding Lobbying; Debarment, Suspension, and Other 
Responsibility Matters; and Drug-Free Workplace Requirements, available at 
http://www.fema.gov/library/viewRecord.do?id=2628 

The program title listed in the CFDA is “Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response 
(SAFER).” The CFDA number is 97.083. 

2. Dun and Bradstreet Data Universal Number System (DUNS) Number:  The applicant must 
provide a DUNS number with their application. This number is a required field within 
http://www.grants.gov and for System for Award Management (SAM) (see below). Organizations 
should verify that they have a DUNS number, or take the steps necessary to obtain one as soon as 
possible. Applicants can receive a DUNS number at no cost by calling the dedicated toll-free DUNS 
number request line at (866) 705-5711. 

3. Valid Registration in System for Award Managemen t (SAM), which replaced the Central 
Contractor Registration (CCR): The application process also involves an updated and current SAM 
registration by the applicant at http://www.sam.gov. Please ensure that your organization’s name, 
address, DUNS number, and Employee Identification Number (EIN) are up to date in SAM and that 
the DUNS number used in SAM is the same one used to apply for all FEMA awards. Future 
payments will be contingent on the information provided in SAM; therefore it is imperative that the 
information is correct. 

Former CCR Registrants 

If you had an active record in CCR, you have an active record in SAM. You do not need to do 
anything in SAM at this time, unless a change in your business circumstances requires a change in 
SAM in order for you to be paid or to receive an award. Also, banking information, EIN, 
organization/entity name, address, and DUNS number provided in your AFG application must match 
the information that you provided in SAM.gov. SAM will send notifications to the registered user via 
email 60, 30, and 15 days prior to expiration of the record. You can search for registered entities in 
SAM by typing the DUNS number or business name into the search box. 



 

23 
 

A valid SAM Registration is a requirement to apply for a grant; but if awarded, no funds may be drawn 
down until a valid registration has been obtained. Per 2 CFR Part 25, all grant applicants must have 
an active current SAM registration status at the time of application and throughout the duration of any 
federal award. 

The AFG application process also involves an updated and current registration by the applicant, 
which must be confirmed at https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/. 

4. Telephone Device for the Deaf (TDD) and/or Feder al Information Relay Service (FIRS) 
Number available for this Announcement is: (800) 46 2-7585: The automated application is 
designed with help screens and drop-down lists to assist the applicant throughout the process. 
Applicants can save and retrieve their work and for updates and revisions through the end of the 
application period; however, after an application has been completed and submitted, no changes can 
be made.  

The automated system does not allow an applicant to submit an incomplete application. The system 
alerts the applicant when required information has not been entered. By submitting an application on-
line, the applicant will automatically receive an email confirmation that the application was 
successfully submitted.  

The on-line system will allow a single authorized representative of an eligible organization to log on 
and create a user name and password. The selection of the authorized representative is at the 
discretion of each applicant. Applicants should record their user name and password for future 
access to their application. 

5. Hiring a Grant Writer (Recruitment and Retention  Only):  Applicants are allowed to hire a grant 
writer to assist in the application process. Applicants are responsible for ensuring the information 
contained in their submitted application is a true and accurate reflection of their organization and 
represents the scope of work being proposed. A copy of the cancelled check and bank statement 
should be provided upon request.  

Applicants are strongly encouraged to review all work produced by grant writers, or other third parties 
on their behalf, prior to submission of their application. Applications that falsely represent their 
organization or the proposal in any manner will have their application be considered ineligible by the 
Program Office and referred to the Office of Inspector General for further action, as appropriate 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

24 
 

Appendix A 

APPLICATION AND REVIEW 
INFORMATION 

What’s New – Fact Sheet 

Available Funding 

Appropriated Amount - $320,920,083 

 

New Tools 

Updated Get Ready Guide  – A handy guide to give you a jump start in prepping your grant 
application to better prepare you for thoroughly answering the application questions is 
available at http://www.fema.gov/firegrants. 

Funding Opportunity Announcement and Application Ki t  
• Appendix A – Application and Review Information  

Part l.     Funding Opportunity Description 

Program priorities are listed as High, , Medium , or Low . 

Within each identified program priority (H, M, L), all the proposed activities have an 
equal value.  

Part ll.    Award Information 

Part lll.   Eligibility Information  

Part lV.  Application and Submission Information 

Part V.   SAFER Definitions 

• Appendix B – Award Administration  

Part l.    Award Administration 

Part ll.   FEMA Contacts 

Part lll.  Other Information 
 
 

 

 



 

25 
 

Additional Overview Information – Key Changes 

• The content of this FOA reflects the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Secretary 
and FEMA’s implementation of the Federal Fire Prevention and Control Act of 1974, 
(codified, as amended, at 15 USC §2229a et seq.). Under authorities provided under the 
Federal Fire Prevention and Control Act of 1974, as amended, the following requirements 
are being waived for the FY 2013 SAFER Grants Program— 

o Salary limits:  There are no annual salary limits.  

o Supplanting requirement: Grants may be used for the purpose of retaining 
firefighters currently employed who are facing imminent lay-offs or rehiring laid-off 
firefighters. If applying to retain firefighters facing lay-offs, applicants will answer 
questions within the on-line application as if these positions had already been laid off. 

o Period of performance: For Hiring of Firefighters Category Grants, the period of 
performance has been reduced to two years.  

o Attrition of firefighters during the period of perf ormance: At the time of award, 
grantees under the Hiring of Firefighters category must submit a current (pre-SAFER) 
roster listing paid operational/firefighting personnel in support of NFPA 1710 or NFPA 
1720, who are in full-time or job share positions. The program office will work with a 
grantee to establish the correct staffing maintenance number which combines the 
number of pre-SAFER and SAFER Hires. Once this is established, grantees must 
agree to maintain this number throughout the two year period of performance by 
taking active and timely steps to fill any vacancies.   

Grantees who are unable (due to documentable economic hardship) to backfill 
firefighting positions that were vacated through attrition (e.g., resignation, retirement) 
may petition FEMA for a waiver of staffing maintenance requirements. An approved 
waiver allows a grantee to decrease and reestablish the staffing maintenance number 
agreed to at the time of award by the number of positions that a grantee is unable to 
fill. In order to qualify for this waiver, the economic hardship must affect the entire 
public safety sector in a grantee’s jurisdiction, not only the fire department. Waivers 
will not be granted for SAFER-funded Positions. Gra ntees who fail to maintain 
this level of staffing risk losing the federal fund s awarded under this grant.  

• National, state, local, or tribal volunteer firefighter interest organizations are eligible 
applicants under the Recruitment and Retention of Volunteer Firefighters category. 

• National, state, local, or tribal volunteer firefighter interest organizations may be 
reimbursed for indirect costs if they have an indirect cost rate proposal that has been 
approved by FEMA or their cognizant federal agency. 

• There are separate evaluation criteria for national, state, local, or tribal volunteer 
firefighter interest organizations and fire departments applying under the Recruitment and 
Retention of Volunteer Firefighters category. 

o CCR to SAM: Central Contractor Registration (CCR) has been replaced by the 
System for Award Management (SAM). The System for Award Management (SAM) is 
a free Web site which consolidates federal procurement systems and the Catalog of 
Federal Domestic Assistance. Currently CCR, FedReg, ORCA, and EPLS have been 
migrated into SAM.  



 

26 
 

o Please visit the SAM Web site at https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/. SAM 
registration is required to receive a SAFER Award. For details, see Part X. Application 
and Submission Information. 

 

FORMER CCR REGISTRANTS 

If you had an active record in CCR, you have an active record in SAM. You do not need to 
do anything in SAM at this time, unless a change in your business circumstances requires a 
change in SAM in order for you to be paid or to receive an award. Also, banking information, 
Employee Identification Number (EIN), organization/entity name, address, and DUNS 
number provided in your AFG application must match the information that you provided in 
SAM.gov. SAM will send notifications to the registered user via email 60, 30, and 15 days 
prior to expiration of the record. You can search for registered entities in SAM by typing the 
DUNS number or business name into the search box. 

 

Key Dates and Time: 

Application Start Date:  July 29, 2013 (8:00 a.m. EDT) 

Application Submission Date: August 30, 2013 (5:00 p.m. EDT) 

 

Help FEMA Prevent Fraud, Waste and Abuse 

If you have information about instances of fraud, waste, abuse, or mismanagement involving 
FEMA programs or operations, you should contact the DHS OIG Hotline at  
(800) 323-8603; by fax at (202) 254-4297; or e-mail DHSOIGHOTLlNE@dhs.gov. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

27 
 

Part I - FUNDING OPPORTUNITY DESCRIPTION 

A. Introduction 

The Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Federal Emergency Management Agency’s (FEMA) 
Grant Programs Directorate implements and administers the SAFER Grants. 

SAFER Grants provides funding directly to fire departments and volunteer firefighter interest 
organizations in order to help them increase the number of trained, "front line" firefighters available in 
their communities. 

FY 2013 SAFER is a competitive/discretionary grant program comprised of two categories: 

• Hiring of Firefighters  (Career, Combination, and Volunteer Fire Departments) 

• Recruitment and Retention of Volunteer Firefighters  (Combination and Volunteer Fire 
Departments and national, state, local, or tribal organizations that represent the interests of 
volunteer firefighters) 

 

SAFER Goal 

Assist local fire departments with staffing and deployment capabilities in order to respond to 
emergencies, assuring communities have adequate protection from fire and fire-related 
hazards.   

 

Maintenance of Staffing Requirement 

For Hiring of Firefighters Category Grants, FY 2013 grantees who are unable to hire 
firefighters to fill positions that were vacated due to documentable economic hardship may 
petition FEMA for a waiver of staffing maintenance requirements. An approved waiver 
allows a grantee to decrease and reestablish the staffing maintenance number agreed to at 
the time of award by the number of positions that a grantee is unable to fill In order to 
qualify for a waiver, the economic hardship must affect the entire public safety sector in 
your jurisdiction, and not only the fire department. Waivers will not be granted for SAFER-
funded positions. 

 

Period of Performance 

For Hiring of Firefighters Category Grants, the period of performance is two years. 

 



 

28 
 

Salary Cap Waiver 

There are no annual salary limits. 

 

Retention of Firefighters 

For Hiring of Firefighters Category Grants, applicants may apply to retain firefighters who 
have been issued a formal layoff notice, which includes a specific date for the layoff action, 
prior to the start of the application period, and those who face imminent layoff – within 120 
days of the close of the application period.  

 

Layoffs 

For Hiring of Firefighters Category Grants, SAFER Grantees that lay off any firefighters 
during the SAFER Grant’s period of performance will be considered in default of their 
award and the grant will be terminated. 

 

1. Hiring of Firefighters Category  

The highest priority in the Hiring of Firefighters Category is for departments seeking to rehire 
firefighters who have been laid off.  

Hierarchy of Priorities 

• First priority : Rehiring laid-off firefighters 

• Second priority : Retention of firefighters who face imminent layoff or filling positions vacated 
through attrition but not filled due to economic circumstances 

• Third priority : Hiring new firefighters 

a. Rehiring of Firefighters Activity 

There are three subcategories under the Rehiring of Firefighters Activity:  

• Rehiring of laid-off firefighters 

• Retention of firefighters facing possible layoffs 

• Filling of positions vacated through attrition 

These grants are awarded directly to volunteer, combination, and career fire departments to enable 
restoration of staffing levels to attain a more effective level of response and a safer incident scene.  



 

29 
 

Please note the following conditions under the Rehiring of Firefighters Activity: 

• Funding provides fire departments with money to pay the salaries and benefits (exclusive of 
overtime) for grants awarded under the rehiring, retention, and attrition subcategories. 

• Grantees must maintain operational staffing at the level that existed at the time of award as 
well as the SAFER-funded staffing for the two-year SAFER Grant Period of Performance 

• Laying off firefighters during the two-year grant period of performance will result in termination 
of the grant award. 

• Only firefighters hired or rehired after the SAFER Grant Award date, except if applying under 
the Retention subcategory, are eligible for grant funding. 

Rehiring 

• Eligible positions for funding under the Rehiring of Laid-Off Firefighters activity must have been 
the object of a layoff between January 1, 2008, and the application deadline (August 30, 
2013).  

Retention 

• Firefighters who have been issued a formal layoff notice, which includes a specific date for the 
layoff action, prior to the start of the application period, and those who face imminent layoff – 
within 120 days of the close of the application period – will be eligible for SAFER Funding 
under the Retention subcategory.  

• The application period closes on August 30, 2013. The layoffs must become effective on or 
before December 28, 2013. 

• Note: Any layoff action not executed in accordance with the terms of the official layoff notice or 
which does not meet the above requirements may not qualify for funding in the rehiring of laid-
off firefighters or retention categories. Applicants that do not meet these parameters must 
apply under the Attrition subcategory or Hiring New  Firefighters Activity .  

Attrition 

• Eligible vacancies for funding under the Attrition subcategory must have occurred between 
January 1, 2008, and the start of the application period.  

b. Hiring of New Firefighters Activity 

New Hire  

• FEMA has set aside 15 percent of the FY 2013 appropriation for hiring new firefighters.  

• Grants for hiring new firefighters are awarded directly to volunteer, combination, and career fire 
departments to help fire departments increase their cadre of frontline firefighters.  



 

30 
 

• Funding provides fire departments with money to pay the salaries and benefits of newly hired 
firefighters (exclusive of overtime).  

• Grantees must maintain operational staffing at the level that existed at the time of award as 
well as the SAFER-funded Staffing for the two-year SAFER Grant Period of Performance.  

• Laying off firefighters during the grant period of performance will result in termination of the 
grant award. 

• Only firefighters hired after the SAFER Grant Award date are considered new hires and eligible 
for grant funding.  

c. Meeting National Standards 

It is a FEMA priority to bring non-compliant (NFPA 1710 or 1720) departments back into compliance 
in the most cost-effective manner. 

Applicants will be asked general questions about the NFPA standard they are attempting to meet as 
well as their current ability to meet that standard (without including the use of overtime). Applicants 
will also be asked to indicate what their ability will be to meet that same standard if awarded grant 
funds. 

Having additional firefighters on staff should improve a local fire department’s ability to comply with 
the staffing, response, and operational standards that enhance community and firefighter safety.  

Applications resulting in the largest percentage increases in compliance with the relevant section of 
NFPA 1710 (for career departments) or 1720 (for volunteer departments) receive higher 
consideration than applications resulting in smaller percentage increases in compliance.  

Note: SAFER Grants focus only on the Deployment or Staffing and Deployment sections of these two 
standards, respectively.  

NFPA 1710 Assembly Requirements: Standard for the Organization and Deployment of Fire 
Suppression Operations, Emergency Medical Operations, and Special Operations to the Public by 
Career Fire Department (Section 5.2.4.2 – Initial Full Alarm Assignment Capability) 

This standard applies primarily to all-career fire departments and combination departments if the 
combination department chooses it.  

NFPA 1720 Assembly Requirements: Standard for the Organization and Deployment of Fire 
Suppression Operations, Emergency Medical Operations, and Special Operations to the Public by 
Volunteer Fire Departments (Section 4.3 – Staffing and Deployment) 

This standard applies primarily to all-volunteer fire departments, but it may also apply to combination 
departments if the combination department does not choose to comply with the NFPA 1710 standard. 
The tables below identify the priority levels for current and new compliance with the NFPA 1710/1720 
standard. 



 

31 
 

Current 1710/1720 Compliance Priorities 

 Never or 0%  Half the time or 40-59% 

 Rarely or 1-19%  Very often or 60-79% 

 Sometimes or 20-39%  Most of the time or 80-99% 

 

New 1710/1720 Compliance Priorities 

 Always or 100%  Half the time or 40-59% 

 Most of the time or 80-90%  Sometimes or 20-39% 

 Very often or 60-79%  Rarely or 1-19% 

 

Need More Information? 

For more information about these two standards, visit http://www.nfpa.org.  

For more information on the standards, contact NFPA at (800) 344-3555 or e-mail 
questions to stds_admin@nfpa.org. 

d. Call Volume and Population Served  

Department call volume and population served are both factors in the initial application evaluation. 
Departments responding to a higher number of incidents and departments who protect larger 
numbers of people will receive higher consideration than those departments responding to fewer 
incidents and protecting smaller jurisdictions.  

e. Firefighter Health Measures  

The health and wellbeing of firefighters is of paramount importance. Therefore, applicants who 
indicate newly recruited firefighters will undergo an entry-level physical and receive immunizations 
receive higher consideration than applicants who do not specify these benefits will be provided. To 
qualify for this higher consideration, the physicals must be consistent with those required under NFPA 
1582 Chapter 6, Medical Evaluations of Candidates 6.1 and Chapter 9, Essential Job Tasks — 
Specific Evaluation of Medical Conditions in Members. 

 

 



 

32 
 

Entry-Level Medical Exams  

 NFPA 1582-compliant physicals  Non-NFPA-compliant physicals 

 
Annual Medical Exams  

 NFPA 1582-compliant physicals  Non-NFPA-compliant physicals 

 
f.  Automatic and Mutual Aid 

Automatic and Mutual Aid 

 Fire departments that have formal automatic and/or mutual aid agreements, and 
applicants that based requests on a staffing needs assessment, also receive higher 
consideration.  

g. Training Requirements  

 Minimum Emergency Medical Services (EMS) certifica tion  

 Applicants will receive higher consideration if the personnel funded under the grant will 
meet the minimum EMS certification requirements prescribed by the locality or state 
having jurisdiction. 

2. Recruitment and Retention of Volunteer Firefight ers 
Category – Fire Departments  

The purpose of these grants is to assist fire departments with the recruitment and retention of 
volunteer firefighters who are involved with or trained in the operations of firefighting and emergency 
response.  

The grants are intended to create a net increase in the number of trained, certified, and competent 
firefighters capable of safely responding to emergencies within the grantee’s response area.  

a. Meeting Staffing Standards  

The goal under this SAFER Category is to assist departments experiencing a high rate of turnover 
and have staffing levels significantly below the ideal staffing level required to comply with NFPA 
standards 1710 or 1720 (for details, see c. Meeting National Standards under 1. Hiring of Firefighters 
Activity).  



 

33 
 

Departments who currently have the lowest recruitment and retention rates are given a higher 
consideration for funding. 

b. Volunteer Membership  

Departments or organizations with the highest percentage of volunteers should benefit the most from 
the recruitment and retention of volunteer firefighters. Therefore, applicants whose membership is 
comprised of mostly volunteer members, or have a significant number of volunteer firefighters, 
receive higher consideration.  

Percentage of Volunteers  

 91-100%  41-50% 

 81-91%  31-40% 

 71-80%  21-30% 

 61-70%  11-20% 

 51-60%  1-10% 

c. Recruitment/Retention Plan  

It is critical to have a plan for recruitment and/or retention activities. Applications requesting funding 
for recruitment and/or retention programs should be based on formal plans. Applicants must 
summarize the departments’ recruitment and retention plans in the Narrative Statement and explain 
how the projects/activities will fulfill the plans and meet organizational goals.  

 

R&R Priorities  

 Organizations that perform a periodic 
evaluation of the program’s impact  

 Requests from organizations that have a 
coordinator and marketing plan  

 Organizations that request funding for a 
coordinator’s position and marketing 
plan  

 

d. Call Volume and Population Served  

Department call volume and population served are both factors in the initial evaluation. Departments 
responding to a higher number of incidents and departments who protect a larger population receive 
higher consideration.  

 



 

34 
 

e. Firefighter Health Measures  

Applicants who indicate the newly recruited firefighters will undergo an entry-level physical and 
receive immunizations, who indicate they will provide annual medical exams, and who provide 
worker’s compensation/Accidental Death & Dismemberment (AD&D) benefits to their members 
receive higher consideration than applicants who do not specify these benefits will be provided.  

An application may include a request for physicals or annual medical exams. In order to receive the 
grant, funding for the physicals and medical exams must be consistent with those required under 
NFPA 1582, Chapter 6, Medical Evaluations of Candidates 6.1 and Chapter 9, Essential Job Tasks 
— Specific Evaluation of Medical Conditions in Members.  

Entry-Level Medical Exams 

 NFPA 1582-compliant physicals  Non-NFPA-compliant physicals 

 

Annual Medical Exam 

 NFPA 1582-compliant physicals  Non-NFPA-compliant physicals 

 

Worker’s Compensation/Accidental Death & Dismemberm ent (AD&D)  

 Applicants who currently provide 
worker’s compensation/accidental death 
and dismemberment insurance receive 
a higher competitive rating.  

 Applicants who plan to supply worker’s 
compensation/accidental death and 
dismemberment insurance with grant 
funds receive a more competitive rating. 

f. Training Requirements  

 Timeliness of Training  

 Applicants will receive higher consideration if they will train the newly recruited firefighters 
to meet the minimum fire and EMS certification requirements prescribed by the locality or 
state within 24 months of appointment to the department. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

35 
 

Training and Certification  

  FF II/EMT    FF I 

  FF II   First Responder 

  FF I/EMT  

g. Regional Requests  

Requests for recruitment or retention that have a regional impact (i.e., an impact beyond the 
immediate boundaries of the applicant’s first-due area) will receive higher consideration. 

An eligible applicant, which can include a fire department, may act as a “host applicant” and apply for 
support of both a regional initiative and its own department’s internal needs on one application.  

A regional host must include a list of all the participating organizations benefitting from a proposed 
regional project, and provide clear and detailed information on which activities are regional specific 
versus those that are host specific.  

In order to apply for a regional project, the host fire department must agree, if awarded, to be 
responsible for all aspects of the grant. This includes, but is not limited to, accountability for the 
assets and all reporting requirements. SAFER strongly recommends all fire departments involved 
work together prior to award to achieve consensus on programmatic and financial processes and 
roles and responsibilities. In the regional application, the host fire department will be required to 
describe the characteristics of the entire region that will be affected by the project as outlined in 
Appendix A, Part IV. 

In completing the Request Details and Narrative Statement sections of the application, the applicant 
must include a list of participating third-party organizations that will benefit from the regional project if 
the project is approved. In completing the Department Characteristics section of the application, the 
regional applicant must include data that approximates the characteristics of all fire departments 
affected by the grant. The third-party organizations that will benefit from the recruitment and retention 
project may also apply for funding under SAFER as long as the third-party organizations do not apply 
for a project that could conflict with or duplicate the host applicant’s project.  

Note : Only applications submitted under the Recruitment and Retention of Volunteer Firefighter 
Category qualify for regional project requests. The Hiring of Firefighters Category is not eligible as a 
regional project.  

 

 



 

36 
 

3. Recruitment and Retention of Volunteer Firefight ers 
Category –  National, State, Local, or Tribal Volunteer 
Firefighter Interest Organizations  

The purpose of these grants is to assist national, state, local, or tribal organizations that represent the 
interests of volunteer firefighters with the recruitment and retention of volunteer firefighters who are 
involved with or trained in the operations of firefighting and emergency response.  

The grants are intended to create an aggregate increase in the number of trained, certified, and 
competent firefighters capable of safely responding to emergencies on behalf of the fire departments 
being represented. In completing the Request Details and Narrative Statement sections of the 
application, the applicant must include data that approximates the characteristics of the entire region 
and/or all fire departments affected by the grant as outlined in Appendix A, Part IV. If awarded, 
grantees may be required to provide documentation of each fire department’s consent to participate 
in the application. 

a. Meeting Staffing Standards  

The goal under this SAFER Category is to assist departments experiencing a high rate of turnover 
that have staffing levels significantly below the ideal staffing level required to comply with NFPA 
standards 1710 or 1720 (For details, see c. Meeting National Standards under 1. Hiring of Firefighters 
Grants earlier in this document).  

Organizations that currently have the lowest recruitment and retention rates among the entire region  
and/or all fire departments  benefiting from the grant funds are given a higher consideration for 
funding. 

b. Volunteer Membership  

Organizations with the highest percentage of volunteers should benefit the most from the recruitment 
and retention of volunteer firefighters. Therefore, applicants whose membership is comprised of 
mostly volunteer members, or have a significant number of volunteer firefighters, receive higher 
consideration.  

Percentage of Volunteers  

 91-100%  41-50% 

 81-91%  31-40% 

 71-80%  21-30% 

 61-70%  11-20% 

 51-60%  1-10% 



 

37 
 

c. Recruitment/Retention Plan 

It is critical to have a plan for recruitment and retention activities. Applications requesting funding for 
recruitment or retention programs should be based on formal plans. Applicants must summarize the 
organization’s recruitment and retention plans in the Narrative Statement and explain how the 
projects/activities applied will fulfill the plans and meet organizational goals.  

R&R Priorities  

 Organizations that perform a periodic 
evaluation of the program’s impact  

 Requests from organizations that have a 
marketing plan  

 Organizations that request funding for a 
coordinator’s position  

 

d. Population Served  

The combined organizations’ population served is a factor in the initial evaluation. Organizations who 
represent fire departments protecting larger combined numbers of people will receive higher 
consideration. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

38 
 

Part II - AWARD INFORMATION 
This section summarizes the award period of performance and the total amount of funding available 
under the FY 2013 SAFER Grants. It also describes the basic method used to determine final grant 
awards and identifies all eligible applicants for funding. 

Hiring of Firefighters Category 

For all grantees under the Hiring of Firefighters category for both hiring new firefighters or for rehiring 
firefighters, a default 90-day recruitment period begins when the application is approved for award. 

The two year period of performance automatically starts after the 90-day recruitment period, 
regardless of whether the grantee has successfully hired the requested firefighters.  

If a grantee is able to rehire or hire their SAFER-funded Firefighters during the 90-day recruitment 
period, the period of performance may begin at that time. For grantees awarded under the Retention 
category, the period of performance can begin immediately. However, in both cases, grantees must 
submit an amendment requesting that the period of performance start before the end of the 90-day 
recruitment period. The period of performance cannot be started later than 90 days after the 
recruitment period. 
 
Recruitment and Retention of Volunteer Firefighters  Category 

Funding may be provided for a four-year period of performance. There is a 90-day recruitment period, 
which begins when the application is approved for award. The recruitment period allows each grantee 
time to finalize contracts before the start of the period of performance in order to maximize the 
availability of the funding. Grantees can seek reimbursement for grant-related costs incurred during 
the recruitment period as long as these costs are in the approved budget and scope of work.  

Grantees should be aware if costs incurred during the recruitment period are charged to the grant, 
this will reduce the overall amount of funds available and budgeted during the period of performance. 
Payment for these costs may be requested when the period of performance begins. However, if a 
grantee is able to begin their recruitment or retention activities during the 90-day recruitment period, 
the period of performance may begin at that time. However grantees must submit an amendment 
requesting that the period of performance start before the end of the 90-day recruitment period. The 
period of performance cannot be started later than 90 days after the recruitment period. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

39 
 

Part III - ELIGIBILITY INFORMATION 

A. Cost Sharing  

There is no prescribed cost share for the SAFER Grantees receiving awards from the FY 2013 
appropriations. 

B. Other Allowable Costs 

In order to help alleviate the financial burden of start-up costs, FEMA will allow Recruitment and 
Retention Grantees to charge the SAFER Grant for the costs for physicals and Personal Protective 
Equipment (PPE) for newly recruited members.  

Funds are available to acquire primarily OSHA-required and NFPA-compliant PPE for firefighting 
personnel. Only actual costs are allowed and will be paid on a reimbursable basis. However, the 
allowable costs may be limited to reasonable amounts, as determined by FEMA.  

Grantees are required to provide documentation to support the purchase of the personal protective 
clothing gear (proof that the firefighter(s) have undergone an NFPA 1582 compliant physical and are 
certified as “fit for duty”). Equipment requested must meet all current mandatory requirements, as well 
as any national or state standards and increase firefighter safety. The following charts contain 
information on the eligibility of PPE. Copies of NF PA standards may be reviewed at 
(http://www.NFPA.org ). 

Eligible Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) Expend itures 

• One set of PPE for structural or  wildland firefighting (including SCBA mask/face piece, boots, 
pants, coats, gloves, hoods, goggles, helmets, coveralls, and fire shelters)  

• American National Standards Institute (ANSI)-approved retro-reflective highway apparel 

 

Ineligible PPE Expenditures 

• Three-quarter length rubber boots 

• Self-Contained breathing Apparatus (SCBAs) (not including SCBA masks/face pieces)  

• Spare cylinders and individual face pieces  

• Bomb disposal suits 
• PPE for hazardous materials and other specialized incidents 
• More than one set of PPE per member 

 



 

40 
 

Training on Use of Requested Equipment 

Applicants must indicate that the grant-purchased PPE will be utilized by adequately trained staff or 
request appropriate training for the requested items. Failure to meet this requirement may result in 
ineligibility for PPE funding. 

 

Physicals 

Grantees may request funds for costs incurred for providing the new recruits with physicals. All 
grant-funded physicals must meet NFPA 1582 standards (Chapter 6, Medical Evaluations of 
Candidates 6.1 and Chapter 9, Essential Job Tasks — Specific Evaluation of Medical Conditions in 
Members).  

 

Remodeling/Renovations of Existing Facilities 

The remodeling/renovations to an existing facility are only allowable under the Recruitment and 
Retention of Volunteer Firefighters Category. The renovations must be minor interior alterations not 
to exceed $10,000 (total per grant award).   

Eligible applicants must provide a cost breakdown in the Request Details section. The costs must be 
justified in the Narrative Statement section as well.  

Remodeling/renovations may not change the footprint or profile of the building. Any request for 
modifications to facilities may require Environmental and Historic Preservation (EHP) review. See 
below for more information on EHP. 

 

Explorer/Cadet Programs 

Eligible items under these programs include but are not limited to the following:  

• Uniforms, boots, gloves, jackets 

• Training (Non-Immediate Danger to Life and Health or IDLH) 

• Turnout Gear (not to be used in an IDLH atmosphere) 

• Insurance 

• Coordinator’s position 

• Workers compensation insurance 

• Transportation costs 

• Medical exams 

Items that are NOT eligible under Explorer/Cadet Programs include the following: 



 

41 
 

Explorer/Cadet Programs 

• SCBA 

• Anything involving the IDLH atmosphere 

• Vehicles 

• Warning lights for private vehicles 

• Any activities precluded by the authority having jurisdiction 

• Radios, cell phones, or pagers 

 
Environmental Historic Preservation (EHP) Review 

• Project construction using SAFER Funds may not exceed $10,000.  

• Written approval must be provided by FEMA prior to the use of any SAFER Funds for 
construction or renovation. If awarded funds for construction, grantees may be required to 
submit evidence of approved zoning ordinances, architectural plans, any other locally 
required planning permits, and a notice of interest. 

• Grantees are encouraged to have completed as many steps as possible for a successful 
EHP review in support of their proposal for funding (e.g., coordination with their State 
Historic Preservation Office to identify potential historic preservation issues and to discuss 
the potential for project effects; compliance with all state and EHP laws and requirements). 
Projects for which the grantee believes an Environmental Assessment (EA) may be 
needed, as defined in 44 CFR §§ 10.8 and 10.9, must also be identified to the FEMA Fire 
Program Specialist within six (6) months of the award.  

• SAFER Grantees using funds for construction projects must comply with the Davis-Bacon 
Act (40 USC 3141 et seq.). Grant recipients must ensure that their contractors or 
subcontractors for construction projects pay workers employed directly at the work-site no 
less than the prevailing wages and fringe benefits paid on projects of a similar character. 
Additional information, including Department of Labor wage determinations, is available 
from the following Web site http://www.dol.gov/compliance/laws/comp-dbra.htm. 

 

C. Other Funding Restrictions 

FEMA Grant Funds may be used only for the purpose outlined in the grant and must be consistent 
with the statutory authority for the award.  

Grant Fund Restrictions 

Grant funds may not be used for matching funds for other federal grants/cooperative agreements, 
lobbying, or intervention in federal regulatory or adjudicatory proceedings.  



 

42 
 

In addition, federal funds may not be used to sue the Federal Government or any other government 
entity. Failure to adhere to the award conditions will cause the grantee to be considered in default of 
the grant agreement, and may require the return of all federal funds disbursed under the grant.  

With the exception of grant writer fees for SAFER Recruitment and Retention Grants, pre-award costs 
are not allowable for SAFER Grants. 

Federal employees are prohibited from serving in any capacity (paid or unpaid) on any proposal 
submitted under this program. Federal employees may not receive funds under this award. 

D. Reasonableness of Requests 

The Peer Review Panelists consider all budgeted expenses as part of the cost-benefit determination 
and may recommend appropriate adjustments. Regardless of the eligibility of any costs requested or 
the panelists’ determination, FEMA reserves the right to reduce any requests for funding, in whole or 
in part, that it deems excessive or otherwise contrary to the best interests of the program. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

43 
 

Part IV - APPLICATION AND SUBMISSION 
INFORMATION 

A. Program Narrative 

In the application, fire departments applying for SAFER Grants will be asked general questions about 
their organization and community, as well as questions specific to the proposed project. National, 
state, local, or tribal organizations that represent the interests of volunteer firefighters will be asked a 
number of general questions regarding their organizations and a series of activity-specific questions 
relative to the Recruitment and Retention Projects they propose and the activities selected. The 
activity-specific questions allow FEMA to understand the nature of the request and to evaluate how 
closely the request adheres to the established priorities.  

Applicants will also be required to provide a written Narrative Statement describing the planned 
project. The Narrative Statement of the application must provide specific details of the activity for 
which applicants are seeking funding, including budget details. Applicants must be sure each of the 
requested activities (each line item in the Request Details section of the application) is fully described 
in the Project Description portion of the Narrative Statement. Each element must provide information 
regarding how the proposed activity is related to the applicant’s Hiring and Recruitment and Retention 
Program.  

In applications for recruitment and retention, the applicants must also provide details regarding how 
volunteers will qualify for the incentives (who is eligible for initiatives funded under the grant and 
discuss any prerequisites). For example, an organization might withhold paying nominal stipends until 
members participate in a minimum number of operational activities.  

Applicants should save their work often as the electronic application includes a time-out feature. If no-
save activity is detected for a period of time, the application will time-out and all information that is not 
saved could be lost. Therefore, it is recommended that applicants type the Narrative Statement 
information off-line using either a word processing program, such as MS Word, Word Perfect, 
Notepad, etc., to avoid losing any information.  

Once the Narrative Statement is complete, applicants can then cut-and-paste the text into the 
appropriate sections within the Narrative section of the application. Please note the Narrative 
Statement block does not allow for formatting. Do not type your narrative using only capital letters. 
Additionally, do not include tables, special fonts (quote marks, bullets, etc.), or graphs. 

Space for the Narrative Statement is limited. Once you save the Narrative Statement to the 
application, log-out and then log back in to the application to verify that the information was 
successfully saved. 

 

B. Funding Restrictions 
 
Please see Section III. Eligibility Information for a list of funding restrictions. 



 

44 
 

Part V - SAFER GRANTS DEFINITIONS 

For the purposes of the SAFER Grants, the following definitions apply. 

Attrition:  A gradual reduction in work force without firing of personnel, as when workers resign or 
retire and are not replaced.  

Automatic-aid:  An agreement whereby fire departments are dispatched simultaneously on the initial 
alarm or where fire departments participate in closest-unit response dispatching.  

Benefits:  Includes regular compensation paid to employees during periods of authorized absences 
from the job, such as vacation leave, sick leave, military leave, etc. 

These costs are absorbed by all organization activities in proportion to the relative amount of time or 
effort actually devoted to each. Employer contributions or expenses for social security, employee 
insurance, workmen’s compensation, pension plan costs, and the like, whether treated as indirect 
costs or as direct costs, shall be distributed to particular awards and other activities in a manner 
consistent with the pattern of benefits accruing to the individuals or group of employees whose 
salaries and wages are chargeable. Overtime expenses, other than those meeting FLSA 
requirements, are not  eligible as benefits costs. 

Career Fire Department:  A fire department that has an all-paid force of firefighting personnel other 
than paid-on-call firefighters (fire departments that provide reimbursement on a paid-on-call basis are 
considered to be a combination fire department for the purposes of this program).  

Combination Fire Department:  A fire department that has paid firefighting personnel and volunteer 
firefighting personnel. At a minimum, a combination fire department must have at least one active 
firefighter that receives financial compensation for services (including paid-on-call) and/or at least one 
active firefighter that does not receive financial compensation for services, other than life, health, and 
workers’ compensation insurance. 

Emergency Medical Services Organization:  A public or private organization that provides direct 
emergency medical services, including medical transport. 

Fire Department:  An agency or organization that has a formally recognized arrangement with a 
state, territory, local government, or tribal authority (city, county, parish, fire district, township, town, or 
other governing body) to provide fire suppression on a first-due basis to a fixed geographical area. 
Fire departments may be comprised of members who are volunteer, career, or a combination of 
volunteer and career.  

Firefighter:  An individual having the legal authority and responsibility to engage in fire suppression; 
employed by a fire department of a municipality, county, fire district, or state, engaged in the 
prevention, control, and extinguishing of fires; and/or responding to emergency situations in which 
life, property, or the environment is at risk. This individual must be trained in fire suppression, but may 
also be trained in emergency medical care, hazardous materials awareness, rescue techniques, and 
any other related duties provided by the fire department.  



 

45 
 

Formal Layoff Notice:  Any layoff notice should align with the local rules and regulations that govern 
civil service employment in the jurisdiction. In order to be reasonable to employees, and to provide 
employees facing layoff actions a clear understanding of the impending action, any notice of layoff 
should be in writing and delivered to a specific employee affected by the action. The notice should 
identify a specific date employment will cease or specific event that would trigger the termination of 
employment.  

The notice should be delivered or otherwise presented directly to the affected employee in advance of 
the layoff action in accordance with the civil service provisions or union agreement in force in the 
jurisdiction taking action, e.g., 60 days prior to the effective date of the layoff action. The notice 
should specify whether the action is permanent or temporary as well as provide the anticipated 
schedule of layoffs. For the purposes of the SAFER Program, a notice that is not executed within the 
specified terms will be considered void unless an additional notice is provided within 14 days of the 
original action date.  

Initial Full Alarm Assignment:  Personnel, equipment, and resources ordinarily dispatched upon 
notification of a structural fire.  

Majority Career:  A department is considered majority career if 50 percent or more of the active 
firefighting membership is salaried staff.  

Majority Volunteer : A department is considered majority volunteer if more than 50 percent of the 
active firefighting membership is NOT compensated for service other than a nominal stipend and/or 
insurance. 

Mutual-aid:  An agreement whereby assisting fire departments are dispatched into another fire 
department’s jurisdiction only when the first-arriving unit on a scene calls for assistance, or when 
specially requested by dispatch. 

Nominal Stipend:  A stipend is nominal if it does not exceed 20 percent of what the fire department 
would otherwise pay to hire a full-time firefighter to perform the services for which the stipend is 
provided. Whether a stipend falls above or below the 20 percent threshold may be determined in one 
of two ways. Departments that maintain paid full time firefighters on their payrolls may compare the 
stipend to the salary they pay a full time firefighter who performs similar services to determine 
whether the stipend is more or less than 20 percent of that salary. Departments that do not maintain 
full time firefighters on their payrolls may make the determination based on a comparison to the 
salary paid to a full time firefighter in a neighboring jurisdiction, elsewhere in the state, or ultimately 
the nation, and may also utilize data from the Department of Labor’s Bureau of Labor Statistics. A 
nominal stipend may also include reimbursements to volunteer firefighters for approximate out-of-
pocket expenses they incur. 

If a stipend paid exceeds 20 percent of the prevailing wage calculated as described above, then the 
firefighter receiving compensation would not qualify as a volunteer and is considered an employee 
who may be covered by the FLSA minimum wage and overtime provisions. 

Operational Budget:  The budget supporting fire-related programs and/or emergency response 
activities (salaries, maintenance, equipment, apparatus, etc.).  



 

46 
 

Paid-on-Call:  Firefighters who are paid a stipend for each event to which they respond. Paid-on-call 
firefighters may be considered paid firefighters or volunteer firefighters, depending on whether the 
stipend they receive is a nominal stipend. A department whose membership is comprised of all 
volunteer firefighters, including any paid-on-call firefighters who receive only a nominal stipend, will 
be considered a volunteer fire department for purposes of this safer program. A department whose 
membership is comprised of any paid-on-call firefighters who receive more than a nominal stipend will 
be considered a combination fire department, for the purposes of this SAFER Program. Also refer to 
the definition of a nominal stipend. 

Part-time Firefighter:  A firefighter who works less than 40 hours per week. When more than one 
part-time firefighter shares a position that results in work in excess of 40 hours per week, FEMA 
considers that shared assignment to be a full-time equivalent (FTE) position that must be accounted 
for in the staffing information provided in the application.  

State:  Any of the 50 states, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, the US Virgin Islands, Guam, 
American Samoa, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands.  

National, State, Local, or Tribal Organizations tha t Represent the Interests of Volunteer 
Firefighters:  Organizations that support, or represent the interests of, firefighters in front of legislative 
bodies at the local, state, tribal, and federal level. Such organizations include, but are not limited to, 
state or local firefighter and/or fire chiefs’ associations, volunteer firefighter relief organizations, and 
associations. FEMA shall make the final determination as to whether an applicant is an appropriate 
volunteer firefighter interest group. 

Staffing and Deployment:  The minimum staffing requirements to ensure a sufficient number of 
members are available to operate safely and effectively as defined in NFPA 1710 and 1720. 

Volunteer Fire Department:  A fire department that has an all-volunteer force of firefighting 
personnel. For a fire department to have an all-volunteer force, no member may receive financial 
compensation (in the form of salary or wages) for their services other than life and health insurance, 
workers’ compensation insurance, and/or a nominal stipend per call. FEMA considers a department 
to be majority volunteer if more than 50 percent of its membership is made up of personnel who do 
not receive financial compensation for services. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

47 
 

Appendix B 

AWARD ADMINISTRATION 

Part I - AWARD ADMINISTRATION 

A. Grantee Responsibilities 

SAFER Award recipients (grantees) must agree to the following: 

1. Perform all tasks (scope of work) as outlined in the grantee’s application approved by FEMA 
within the period of performance, and comply with all special conditions in accordance with the 
articles of agreement. Grantees that do not fulfill their obligations under their SAFER Grant will be 
considered in default and may be required to return the federal funds disbursed under the grant 
award.  

2. Grantees under the Hiring of Firefighters Category who layoff any firefighters during the two-year 
period of performance will be considered in default of their grant and the award will be terminated. 
Grantees may be required to return the federal funds disbursed under the grant award.  

3. Grantees under the Hiring of Firefighters Category must agree to maintain the SAFER Funded 
Positions as well as the number of positions declared at the time of award throughout the two 
year period of performance unless the grantee has been afforded a waiver of this requirement. 
For additional details on attrition of firefighters during the period of performance and waivers of 
staffing maintenance requirements, see Appendix A. Additional Overview Information. 

4. Retain grant files and supporting documentation for three years after receipt of the official 
notification that the grant has been closed. FEMA may require access to any pertinent books, 
documents, papers, or records belonging to a grant recipient. The DHS Office of Inspector 
General or the Comptroller General of the United States may also require access to a grantee’s 
books and records.  

The required documentation for federally funded purchases should include specifications, 
solicitations, competitive quotes or proposals, basis for selection decisions, purchase orders or 
contracts, invoices, and cancelled checks. Grantees who fail to document purchases may find 
their expenditures will be questioned and disallowed. 

5. Provide periodic performance reports to FEMA. In all years of the grant’s period of performance, 
for both the Hiring of Firefighters and the Recruitment and Retention of Volunteer Firefighters 
categories, grantees must submit quarterly performance reports as well as a final performance 
report at grant closeout. Payments are requested on-line using the automated system and 
payments are based on actual expenses incurred during the period covered by the payment 
request. Quarterly performance reporting is required if the grantee has not requested funding 
within the quarter.  



 

48 
 

At the end of the grant’s period of performance, all grantees are required to produce a final report 
on how the grant funding was used and the benefits realized from the award. Grantees must 
submit a final financial report and a final performance report (i.e., closeout report) within 90 days 
after the end of the period of performance. After these reports have been reviewed and approved 
by FEMA, grantees are given an official notice that the closeout has been accepted and 
completed. Any remaining grant funds are de-obligated. The grantee is responsible for returning 
any funds that have been drawn down but remain unspent.  

6. Administer the grant in accordance with the administrative rules for federal grants and 
cooperative agreements, specifically those found in 44 CFR Part 13.  

7. Follow the audit requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of states, local governments, and 
nonprofit organizations, which call for grantees who expend $500,000 or more in federal funds in 
a year (from all federal sources) to have a single audit performed in accordance with the Circular. 
(For more information about the Circulars, go to http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars) 

8. Notwithstanding any provision of other laws, firefighters hired under these grants shall not be 
discriminated against, or be prohibited from, engaging in volunteer firefighting activities in another 
jurisdiction during off-duty hours. 

9. Homeland Security Presidential Directive-5 requires that, beginning October 1, 2005, all 
recipients of federal preparedness funds (including recipients of federal grants and contracts) 
adopt the National Incident Management System (NIMS) as a condition for the receipt of the 
federal funds.  

Recipients of FY 2013 SAFER Grants will be considered to be in compliance with the NIMS 
requirement if the grantee:  

(a) Has an operational knowledge of the Incident Command System (ICS)  

(b) Has an understanding of NIMS’ principles and policies 

(c) Agrees to adopt and/or comply with all directives, ordinances, rules, orders, edicts, etc., 
passed down by the local or state authorities with respect to incident management. 

Responders who have already been trained in ICS do not need retraining if their previous training 
is consistent with DHS standards. In order for us to document compliance, grantees will be 
required to certify their compliance with the NIMS/ICS requirements as part of their grant closeout 
process. Grantees may contact their State Emergency Preparedness Officer or State Fire 
Marshal for local NIMS compliance requirements. 

10. To the extent possible, grantees should seek, recruit, and appoint women and members of racial 
and ethnic minority groups to increase their ranks within the applicant’s department (see eligibility 
requirements). 

11. FEMA strongly encourages applicants, to the extent practicable, to seek, recruit, and hire military 
veterans to increase their ranks within their departments. In FY 2013, all SAFER Applicants who 
have a policy in place addressing their intent to implement strategies to recruit military veterans 
will receive additional consideration. 



 

49 
 

12. Grantees may use their own procurement procedures, which reflect applicable state and local 
laws and regulations, provided the procurements conform with the requirements of 44 C.F.R. § 
13.36(b) – (i) and other applicable federal laws and standards. 

Grantees who fail to adhere to their own procurement policy, or otherwise fail to fully comply with 
the federal laws and standards regarding purchases involving federal funds may be subject to 
questioning and subsequently disallowed costs. 

13. Specifications shall clearly show all requirements the bidder will fulfill in order for the bid or offer 
to be evaluated. However, those specifications may not be so narrowly constructed or contain 
features that limit, restrict, or eliminate competition unnecessarily.  

Grantees may, when developing solicitations, list factors that will be used in their evaluation of 
proposals as long as those evaluation factors are not found to limit competition. Finally, grantees 
cannot impose in-state or local geographical preferences in the evaluation of bids or proposals. 

Applicants and grantees are encouraged to obtain product information from vendors in order to 
be more informed about the items they plan to purchase. However, grantees may not use 
specifications obtained from vendors for any solicitation with federal grant funds if the 
specifications would be found to be restrictive. It is the grantee’s responsibility to assure vendor 
specifications are not used in a manner that would result in restricting or limiting competition.  

Additionally, if a vendor or manufacturer drafts, writes, edits, critiques, or provides any direct 
consultation on a grant application, that vendor or manufacturer cannot submit a bid for that 
purchase. Likewise, if a vendor or manufacturer drafts, writes, edits, or critiques a specification to 
be used for the solicitation for the purchase of a specific product, that vendor or manufacturer 
cannot submit a bid for that purchase. See Conflicts of Interest below.  

Grantees shall, on request, make available pre-award review and procurement documents such 
as requests for proposals or invitations for bids, and independent cost estimates if 1) the 
purchase specifies a brand name product, or 2) the proposed grant is to be awarded to someone 
other than the apparent low bidder under a sealed bid process.  

Grantees found to be using proprietary, or otherwise limiting specifications, may find their 
expenditures questioned and subsequently disallowed. 

14. In order to ensure objective vendor performance and eliminate a real or apparent unfair 
competitive advantage, anyone who develops or drafts specifications, requirements, statements 
of work (including the grant application), invitations for bids, and/or requests for proposals shall 
be excluded from competing for such procurements.  

Additionally, no employee, officer, or agent of the grantee shall participate in the selection, award, 
or administration of a procurement supported by federal funds if a real or an apparent conflict of 
interest would be involved.  

A conflict of interest could arise when any of the following conditions exists:  

(a) An officer, employee, or agent of the grantee has a financial or other interest in the vendor 
selected for the procurement 



 

50 
 

(b) Any member of the grantee’s officers’, employees’, or agents’ immediate family has a 
financial or other interest in the vendor selected for the procurement 

(c) An organization that employs a grantee’s officer, employee, or agent is a vendor or has a 
financial or other interest in the vendor selected for the procurement.  

For the purposes of this program, DHS considers volunteers of an organization and grant writers 
to be employees, officers, and/or agents of the grantee. No volunteer or member of an 
organization or anyone involved in the application for funding can participate in, or benefit from, 
the procurement if federal funds are involved. 

Grantees that purchase items with grant funds from vendors who employ any of their 
volunteers/members will have to document how they avoided a conflict of interest during the 
procurement process (i.e., specific details regarding how the members/volunteers removed 
themselves, or how they were prevented from participating in the process). 

Grantees who fail to document fully their purchases may find that their expenditures will be 
questioned and subsequently disallowed. 

 

B. Administrative and National Policy Requirements  

The recipient must, in addition to the assurances made as part of the application, (DHS Standard 
Administrative Terms and Conditions available within Section 6.1.1, please see: 
http://www.dhs.gov/xlibrary/assets/cfo-financial-management-policy-manual.pdf) comply with all 
applicable statutes, regulations, executive orders, OMB Circulars, terms and conditions of the award, 
and the approved application. Section 6.1 – CFO Authority for Financial Assistance and Oversight 
 
1. Section 6.1 – CFO Authority for Financial Assist ance and Oversight 
 

1.1 Part 6.1.1 – Financial Assistance Award Standar d Terms and Conditions  

DHS requires standard terms and conditions approved by the Division of Financial Assistance Policy 
and Oversight (FAPO) to be applied to all financial assistance awards. 

For the complete listing of DHS Standard Administrative Terms and Conditions, please refer to: 
Appendix A. Standard Terms and Conditions 

1.2 – Audit Requirements  

Improper Payments Information Act (IPIA) of 2002  

(Public Law 107-300)  

Enacted to ensure the correct use of federal funds and to avoid improper or erroneous payments. 

 



 

51 
 

1.3 – Duplication of Benefits  

• There may not be a duplication of any federal assistance by governmental entities, per 2 CFR 
Part 225, Basic Guidelines Section C.3 (c), which states: Any cost allocable to a particular 
federal award or cost objective under the principles provided for in this Authority may not be 
charged to other federal awards to overcome fund deficiencies, to avoid restrictions imposed 
by law or terms of the federal awards, or for other reasons. However, this prohibition would not 
preclude governmental units from shifting costs that are allowable under two or more awards in 
accordance with existing program agreements. Non-governmental entities are also subject to 
this prohibition per 2 CFR Parts 220 and 230 and 48 CFR 31.2. 

2. Payment.  DHS/FEMA uses the Direct Deposit/Electronic Funds Transfer (DD/EFT) method of 
payment to recipients. To enroll in the DD/EFT, the recipient must complete a Standard Form 
1199A, Direct Deposit Form, found by cutting and pasting the following link into your web 
browser: http://www.fms.treas.gov/eft/1199a.pdf. 

FEMA utilizes the Assistance to Firefighters e-Grants System for the full lifecycle of the grant. 
Please use the following link to access the system https://portal.fema.gov/famsVuWeb/home.  

2.1 – Payment 

•••• In accordance with Treasury regulations at 31 CFR Part 205, the recipient shall maintain 
procedures to minimize the time elapsing between the transfer of funds and the disbursement 
of said funds (See 44 CFR Part 13.21(i)) regarding payment of interest earned on advances. In 
order to request an advance, the recipient must maintain or demonstrate the willingness and 
ability to maintain procedures to minimize the time elapsing between the transfer of funds from 
DHS and expenditure and disbursement by the recipient. When these requirements are not 
met, the recipient will be required to be on a reimbursement for costs incurred method. 

•••• NOTE: Funds will not be automatically transferred upon issuance of the grant. Grantees must 
submit a request for advance/reimbursement (sf-270) in order for the funds to be transferred to 
the grantee’s account. 

3. Certifications and Assurances 

Certifications and assurances regarding the following apply: 

• Debarment and Suspension. – Executive Orders 12549 and 12689 provide protection from 
fraud, waste, and abuse by debarring or suspending those persons that deal in an 
irresponsible manner with the Federal Government. The recipient must certify that they are not 
debarred or suspended from receiving federal assistance. For additional information, see 2 
CFR Part 3000. 

• Federal Debt Status. – The recipient may not be delinquent in the repayment of any federal 
debt. Examples of relevant debt include delinquent payroll or other taxes, audit disallowances, 
and benefit overpayments. (See OMB Circular A-129) (Refer to SF-424, item number 17.) 

 



 

52 
 

4. Environmental Planning and Historic Preservation  Compliance  

As a federal agency, FEMA is required to consider the effects of its actions on the environment and/or 
historic properties to ensure that all activities and programs funded by the agency, including grants-
funded projects, comply with Federal Environmental Planning and Historic Preservation (EHP) 
regulations, laws and Executive Orders as applicable. Grantees and sub-grantees proposing projects 
that have the potential to impact the natural or man-made environment, including but not limited to 
construction of communication towers, modification or renovation of existing buildings, structures and 
facilities, or new construction including replacement of facilities, must participate in the FEMA EHP 
review process. The EHP review process involves the submission of a detailed project description 
that explains the goals and objectives of the proposed project along with supporting documentation 
so that FEMA may determine whether the proposed project has the potential to impact environmental 
resources and/or historic properties. In some cases, FEMA is also required to consult with other 
regulatory agencies and the public in order to complete the review process. The EHP review process 
must be completed before funds are released to carry out the proposed project. 
 
5. Equipment Marking 

Awardees may consider marking equipment in the manner of "purchased with funds provided by the 
US Department of Homeland Security” to facilitate their own audit processes, as well as federal audits 
and monitoring visits, which may result from receiving federal funding. Equipment maintenance 
requirements are outlined in 44 CFR Part 13.32. 

 

C. Draw Down and Expenditure of Funds 

Grantees should not expend funds or request a draw down until all special conditions listed on the 
grant award document have been met and the award is approved for payment in the e-Grants 
system. Grant recipients should draw down funds based upon immediate disbursement requirements; 
however, FEMA strongly encourages recipients to draw down funds as close to disbursement or 
expenditure as possible to avoid accruing interest.   

Although advance drawdown requests are permissible, grantees remain subject to the interest 
requirements of the Cash Management Improvement Act (CMIA) and its implementing regulations at 
31 CFR Part 205. Interest under CMIA will accrue from the time federal funds are credited to a 
grantee’s account until the time the grantee pays out the funds for program purposes. 

 

D. Reporting Requirements  

Reporting requirements must be met throughout the life of the grant (refer to the Funding Opportunity 
Announcement and the special conditions found in the award package for a full explanation of these 
requirements).  

Any reports or documents prepared as a result of this grant shall be in compliance with federal “plain 
English” policies, directives, etc.  



 

53 
 

1. Federal Financial Report (FFR) – required semi-a nnually.  Recipients of any SAFER Grants 
awarded on or after October 1, 2009, are required to submit a semi-annual Federal Financial 
Report (FFR, SF-425). The FFR is to be submitted using the on-line e-Grant system and will be 
due semi-annually based on the calendar year beginning with the period after the award is 
made. Grant recipients will be required to submit an FFR throughout the entire period of 
performance of the grant.  

Reporting periods and due dates:  

• January 1-June 30; due July 30 

• July 1-December 31; due January 30  

2. Financial and Compliance Audit Report.  Recipients that expend $500,000 or more of federal 
funds during their fiscal year are required to submit an organization-wide financial and compliance 
audit report. The audit must be performed in accordance with GAO’s Government Auditing 
Standards, located at http://www.gao.gov/govaud/ybk01.htm, and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, located at 
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars_default. Audit reports are currently due to the Federal 
Audit Clearinghouse no later than nine months after the end of the recipient’s fiscal year.  

In addition, the Secretary of Homeland Security and the Comptroller General of the United States 
shall have access to any books, documents, and records of recipients of FY 2013 assistance for 
audit and examination purposes, provided that, in the opinion of the Secretary or the Comptroller, 
these documents are related to the receipt or use of such assistance. The grantee will also give 
the sponsoring agency or the Comptroller, through any authorized representative, access to, and 
the right to examine all records, books, papers, or documents related to the grant.  

The state shall require that sub-grantees comply with the audit requirements set forth in OMB 
Circular A-133. Recipients are responsible for ensuring that sub-recipient audit reports are 
received and for resolving any audit findings. 

3. Monitoring.  Grant recipients will be monitored periodically by FEMA staff, both programmatically 
and financially, to ensure the project goals, objectives, performance requirements, timelines, 
milestone completion, budgets, and other related program criteria are being met.  

Monitoring will be accomplished through a combination of desk-based reviews and on-site 
monitoring visits. Monitoring will involve the review and analysis of the financial, programmatic, 
performance, and administrative issues relative to each program and will identify areas where 
technical assistance and other support may be needed. 

The recipient is responsible for monitoring award activities, to include sub-awards, to provide 
reasonable assurance that the federal award is administered in compliance with requirements. 
Responsibilities include the accounting of receipts and expenditures, cash management, 
maintaining of adequate financial records, and refunding expenditures disallowed by audits. 

4. Grant Closeout Process.  Within 90 days after the end of the period of performance, grantees 
must submit a final FFR and final progress report detailing all accomplishments throughout the 



 

54 
 

period of performance. After these reports have been reviewed and approved by FEMA, a 
closeout notice will be completed to close out the grant.  

The notice will indicate the period of performance as closed, list any remaining funds that will be 
de-obligated, and address the requirement of maintaining the grant records for three years from 
the date of the final FFR. The grantee is responsible for returning any funds that have been 
drawn down but remain as unspent on grantee financial records.  

5. Required Performance and Financial Reports for G rant Closeout 

• Final Performance Report Narrative (within the Closeout module in e-Grants) is due 90 
days after the end of the period of performance 

• Final SF-425 is due 90 days after the end of the grant period 

Required submissions 

(1) Final SF-425 is due 90 days from end of grant period  

(2) Final progress report is due 90 days from the end of the grant period 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

55 
 

Part II - FEMA CONTACTS 
This section describes several resources that may help applicants in completing a FEMA grant 
application.  

1. Centralized Scheduling and Information Desk (CSI D) 

CSID is a non-emergency comprehensive management and information resource developed by 
DHS for grant stakeholders. CSID provides general information on all FEMA grant programs and 
maintains a comprehensive database containing key personnel contact information for federal, 
state, local and tribal organizations. CSID can be reached by phone at (800) 368-6498 or by e-
mail at ASKCSID@dhs.gov, Monday through Friday, 9:00 AM – 5:30 p.m. (EST). 

2. Grant Programs Directorate (GPD)  

FEMA GPD’s Grants Management Division will provide pre- and post-award administration and 
technical assistance to the grant programs included in this solicitation. Additional guidance and 
information can be obtained by contacting the FEMA Call Center at (866) 927-5646 or by e-mail to 
ASK-GMD@dhs.gov. 

3. FEMA Regions  

FEMA Regions will provide support, including pre- and post-award administration and technical 
assistance, to the grant programs included in this solicitation. For a list of contacts, please go to 
http://www.fema.gov/about/contact/regions.shtm. 

4. SAFER Program Help Desk  

Please contact the SAFER Program Help Desk with your questions or comments by calling (866) 
274-0960 or by e-mail at firegrants@dhs.gov. Additional guidance and information can be 
obtained by visiting the AFG Web site at http://www.fema.gov/firegrants/. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

56 
 

Part III - OTHER INFORMATION 

A. Excess Funds  

Due to successful competitive bid processes, some grantees have funds remaining after the 
completion of their obligations outlined above. 

SAFER Grantees with excess funds 

Hiring of Firefighters Category Grantees   
Grantees that complete the approved scope of work and still have grant funds available may request 
to use the remaining funds provided that the grantee has met all grant requirements during the initial 
period of performance and the use of the funds is consistent with the original scope of work. This 
shall be done through the amendment request process.  

Recruitment and Retention of Volunteer Firefighters  Category Grantees   
Grantees that have completed the approved scope of work in this activity and still have grant funds 
available may use the excess funds to continue with recruitment or retention activities provided they 
are consistent with the original scope of work and conducted within the originally approved period of 
performance. This shall be done through the amendment request process. 

 

B. Turndown Procedure  

The SAFER Grants are competitive. Not all applications will be successful, but all applicants will 
receive a decision letter from FEMA that briefly describes the shortcomings and weaknesses of the 
application. These aspects are articulated by the technical evaluation process. Due to the historical 
number of turndowns for these grants, detailed debriefs for all applicants will not be possible. 


	August 19, 2013 Agenda
	Page 2 
	Page 3

	8. PUBLIC HEARINGS & PRESENTATIONS
	8a. Ordinance No. 602-13 Territory Square

	9. CONSENT
	9a. Resolution No. 1410-13 Silver King Marketplace Final Plat
	9b. Resolution No. 1412-13 CG Ruins National Monument Expansion
	9c. IGA with PCSO for K-9
	9d. Barbara Kelly Redev Comm Resignation
	9e. June 27, 2013 Town Council Minutes
	9e. July 1, 2013 Town Council Minutes

	9f i. February 27, 2013 Minutes HDAC
	9f ii. April 25, 2013 Minutes PR
	9f iii. March 7, 2013 Minutes PZ
	9f iii. April 4, 2013 Minutes PZ



	10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	10a. Ordinance No. 599-13 MR PUD PZC-35-12-PUD

	11. NEW BUSINESS
	11a. Resolution No. 1411-13 Telesis Prep Academy Bond
	11b. FEMA SAFER Grant Application




